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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees of 
Ohio University 
Athens, Ohio 

We have audited the accompanying statements of net assets of Ohio University (the “University”), a component unit 
of the State of Ohio, as of June 30, 2004 and 2003 and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in 
net assets and of cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
University’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the respective financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the respective financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, in fiscal year 2004, the University adopted Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are 
Component Units. 

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Ohio 
University as of June 30, 2004 and 2003, and their changes in net assets and their cash flows for the years then 
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) on pages 2 through 9 is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements, but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
This supplementary information is the responsibility of the University’s management. We have applied certain 
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement 
and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit such information and we do 
not express an opinion on it. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 22, 2004, on our 
consideration of internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in 
assessing the results of our audits. 

 
 

October 22, 2004 

Deloitte & Touche LLP 
155 East Broad Street 
18th Floor 
Columbus, OH 43215-3611 
USA 

Tel:   614-221-1000 
Fax:  614-229-4647 
www.deloitte.com 

Member of 
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu 
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OHIO 
UNIVERSITY

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) of the financial statements of Ohio 
University (the “University”) provides an overview of its financial activities for the fiscal year (“FY”) ended 
June 30, 2004 with comparative data for FY 2003 and FY 2002. Its purpose is to enhance the 
understandability and usefulness of the basic external financial reports. The overriding goal is to respond to 
the needs of the primary users of these statements, i.e., those to whom the University is primarily accountable 
(the citizenry), those who directly represent the citizens (legislative and oversight bodies), and those who lend 
or who participate in the lending process (investors and creditors).  

University management has prepared the financial statements and the related footnote disclosures along with 
this discussion and analysis and the reader is encouraged to read them in conjunction with this MD&A. 
Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of this information rests with University management. 

ABOUT OHIO UNIVERSITY 

Ohio University is a public institution established by the State of Ohio (the “State”) in 1804 under 
Chapter 3337 of the Ohio Revised Code (“ORC”). It is the oldest public institution of higher learning in the 
State of Ohio. It is defined by statute to be a body politic and corporate and an instrumentality of the State.  

The University is governed by a 13-member Board of Trustees. The Governor, with the advice and consent of 
the State Senate, appoints 9 trustees for staggered 9-year nonrenewable terms. In addition, 2 non-voting 
student members are appointed to the Board of Trustees for staggered 2-year terms. The Ohio University 
Board of Trustees created 2 National Trustee positions and have invited 2 distinguished out-of-state 
University alumni to sit with the Trustees and participate in the deliberations of the Board. One term is 2 
years and the other is 3 years. Both are non-voting members. 

The University consists of the main campus in Athens, Ohio and 5 regional campuses. Total Fall 2003 
enrollment for all campuses was 29,088. Eighty-five percent of the students enrolled on the Athens campus 
are residents of the State of Ohio. The University has a total faculty of approximately 1,070 full-time and 750 
part-time, with a total workforce of approximately 4,700 non-student employees. The student to faculty ratio 
on the Athens campus in the Fall of 2003 was 21:1. The University offers 26 Associate majors, 254 
Baccalaureate majors, 167 Masters majors, 56 PhD majors and 1 DO major. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain 
Organizations Are Component Units, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and implemented by the 
University effective July 1, 2003 lead to the conclusion that The Ohio University Foundation, a 501(c)(3) 
organization incorporated in Ohio in October 1945 to support the educational undertakings of Ohio 
University, is to be reported in the University’s statements as a component unit. The University has chosen a 
discrete presentation and the Foundation’s information appears in a separate column next to the University on 
the Statements of Net Assets and the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets. The 
University is not required to prepare a Statement of Cash Flows for the Foundation. A separate financial 
report for the Foundation is available by contacting The Ohio University Foundation, HDL Center, Room 
164, Athens, Ohio 45701 or (740)593-1884.  
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The Ohio University Osteopathic Medical Center Inc. (“MCI”) ceased to exist as an entity effective July 1, 
2003. The appearance of five months of MCI’s data in a discrete column on the University’s financial 
statements will be the last year that MCI is included in this report. The successor organization, University 
Medical Associates (“UMA”) has been evaluated and was determined to not meet the tests of Statement 
No. 14 and Statement No. 39 for component unit treatment.  

This MD&A is intended to address issues of the primary entity and not those of its component units.  

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF FY 2004 

The state funding environment for higher education continues to present funding challenges to public 
institutions. Actual state appropriations were virtually flat for FY 2004, increasing by only $382,535. What 
the University needs, but is unable to fund through the receipt of state appropriations, must be made up with 
tuition increases or by finding alternative revenue streams. 

For the second year in a row the University increased tuition by 9.9% for returning undergraduate and 
graduate students. Six percent is to fund general education with the additional 3.9% earmarked for need-based 
aid and technology initiatives. Room and board rates increased by 8%. 

During FY 2004 the University committed to a payout of $1.6 million over a 2 year period to upgrade faculty 
salaries. Half of that amount was distributed in FY 2004. The goal is to move to the top of the Ohio public 
institution quartile of pay for faculty in order to continue to attract and retain quality faculty. 

The University issued additional debt in FY 2004, increasing its bonds and notes payable on the FY 2004 
Statement of Net Assets by 32%. Additional details of the debt issuances and retirements are contained in the 
footnotes to the financial statements. 

The University’s planning process resulted in a decision to implement an Early Retirement Incentive Plan 
(“ERIP”) buyout in FY 2003 for eligible employees in the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System 
(“OPERS”). An ERIP allows the University to purchase additional service credit, in this case two years, 
which enables eligible employees to retire early or to retire with a larger retirement benefit than they may 
have otherwise. The buyout period began on May 1, 2003 and the period remained open until June 30, 2004. 
A $10,000 incentive was offered to employees who signed up for the buyout by June 30, 2003 and who would 
retire by September 1, 2003. The advantage to the University is personnel costs savings over time to the 
extent that vacated positions are either abolished or filled at lower salaries/wages. As of June 30, 2004, 192 
employees had signed up for the ERIP for a total cost estimate for the program of $9.5 million that includes 
sick leave and vacation payouts in accordance with standard policy, a $10,000 incentive bonus for the 131 
employees who left by September 1, 2003 and the OPERS payment calculated and billed by OPERS. All 
employees taking the buyout were required to be retired by September 1, 2004. 

The University’s implementation of an enterprise-wide information system continued to evolve. The 
Enterprise Project’s mission was to replace the University’s legacy administrative systems with the financial 
and human resource management/payroll modules from the Oracle Corporation. The human resource 
management/payroll module went live on July 1, 2001. The financial modules were implemented on April 1, 
2003. Implementation of Workforce, a time and attendance system utilizing the Web and card swiping for 
time capturing, is currently in use with a pilot group. An automated method of entering data into Payroll for 
graduate appointments was nearly complete by the end of FY 2004 and operational in FY 2005. On the 
horizon is “Business On-Line” – an automated approach to submitting financial transactions for processing. 
The system will have work rules built into it and allow for data entry at the departmental level, thus 
eliminating the need for paper flow and redundant data entry, including the maintenance of duplicative 
systems within individual departments. 
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The rising costs of health care continue to be of concern in the budget planning process. Ohio University has 
had a few recent years of significant positive budget-to-actual variances due to conservative budgeting in this 
area, and better than expected experience. Positive variance dollars have been set aside to offset the cost of 
future initiatives related to providing health care coverage to University employees. A significant amount of 
all projected new operating monies (20-25%) is set aside out of necessity to deal with this issue. 

The University celebrated its bicentennial year (established in 1804) with a Bicentennial Fundraising 
Campaign victory of surpassing its $200 million fundraising goal. The amount received or pledged in support 
of the campaign was $221,442,916. Of the monies collected, $23.1 million will establish 8 new endowed 
chairs and 35 new named professorships, $40.1 million will support existing scholarships and create 1,226 
new scholarships, $17.6 million will be used for new or to improve capital facilities, $29.3 million will be 
used for innovative programs and $13.9 million will be used for technological enhancements.  

CURRENT YEAR RESULTS 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 
One of the most important questions asked about a University’s finances is whether the University is better 
off as a result of the year’s activities. The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Assets report information on the University as a whole and on its activities in a way that 
helps answer this question. Net assets, the difference between total assets and total liabilities are the measure 
of the current financial condition. Increases or decreases in the University’s net assets are one indicator of 
whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. Numerous other nonfinancial factors, such as the 
number and quality of applicants, freshman class size and composition, student retention and graduation rates, 
strength of the faculty, condition of the campus infrastructure and the safety of the campus, must be 
considered when assessing the overall health of the University. 

Points of interest relative to the Statements of Net Assets are as follows: 
• The Statement of Net Assets classifies assets and liabilities as current or noncurrent. Generally, current 

liabilities are those that will be paid within one year of the date of the Statement. Current assets are those that 
are available to satisfy current liabilities. 

• Total Cash and cash equivalents increased by $52,725,025 over FY 2003. A major contributor to this was an 
increase of $30,711,230 in Restricted cash and cash equivalents which are monies held by bond trustees 
awaiting expenditure. 

• Investments include the net appreciation on endowment investments available for expenditure, if authorized 
by the Board, in accordance with donors’ restrictions. 

• Restricted cash and cash equivalents primarily represent unspent bond proceeds as of June 30 of each year. 
• Endowment investments represent the contributed value of University endowments incremented each year by 

new contributions, $10,601 and $16,099 for FY 2004 and FY 2003, respectively, and annual unused earnings 
on one larger endowment whose donor has requested they be added to principal each year. The University 
usually does not take on any new endowments unless the donor’s bequest specifically states that the gift is to 
be administered by the Board of Trustees of Ohio University. Otherwise, the University’s Foundation (The 
Ohio University Foundation) receives and administers new endowments. 

• Capital assets are recorded at historical cost and presented net of their accumulated depreciation. The amount 
of accumulated depreciation was $357,475,056 and $335,071,026 for FY 2004 and FY 2003, respectively. 

• Refundable Advances for Federal Student Loans represents the cumulative Federal capital contribution 
(FCC) to Federal student loan programs, presented as a potential long-term liability. 
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The following chart depicts the breakdown of Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets for Ohio University for the 
years ended June 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002: 

2004 2003 2002
Assets:
     Capital assets, net 481,247,608$ 453,103,537$ 411,925,152$ 
     Other assets 244,482,774 192,627,325 199,123,491   

725,730,382$ 645,730,862$ 611,048,643$ 

Liabilities:
     Current Liabilities 78,535,421$   93,446,995$   75,178,808$   
     Noncurrent Liabilities 184,710,468 121,534,356 135,966,142   

263,245,889$ 214,981,351$ 211,144,950$ 

Net assets 462,484,493$ 430,749,511$ 399,903,693$  

Net assets, expressed as a percent of total assets, are 64% for FY 2004, 67% for FY 2003 and 65% for 
FY 2002. 

The Net Assets for the years ended June 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002 are further displayed as follows: 

2004 2003 2002
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 345,803,896$  334,620,636$ 285,269,795$ 
Restricted nonexpendable 11,836,376      11,727,151     11,604,413     
Restricted expendable 42,898,264      33,749,128     57,253,381     
Unrestricted 61,945,957      50,652,596     45,776,104     

462,484,493$  430,749,511$ 399,903,693$  

Invested in capital assets net of related debt represents the historic dollar value of capital assets reduced by 
their related depreciation and outstanding debt related to their purchase or construction. It is increased by the 
value of any restricted cash and cash equivalents representing funds held by bond trustees and available for 
future capital initiatives.  

Restricted nonexpendable net assets are equal to endowment investments, previously described. 

Restricted expendable net assets is made up primarily of loan funds revenues in excess of their expenses, 
restricted grants and contracts revenues in excess of their expenses and net market appreciation of endowment 
funds available for expenditure, all of whose use has been restricted by external sources. 

Unrestricted net assets is made up of funds available for expenditure at the discretion of the Board of 
Trustees and includes the accumulation of unrestricted revenues received in excess of expenses, including that 
of auxiliary enterprises. 

Points of interest relative to the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets: 
• The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets differentiates between operating and 

nonoperating revenue. Sales of goods and services are recorded as operating revenues, where it is 
generally assumed that the buyer receives something of value equal to the amount given up. Essentially 
all other types of revenue are nonoperating, or other revenue. Nonoperating revenues include State 
appropriations, grants that do not require any services to be performed for the benefit of the grantor and 
investment income. The operating income (loss) line will typically display a loss for state-supported 
public institutions since state appropriations, that have historically played a significant role in the funding 
of public institutions, are mandated to be reported as nonoperating revenue. Other revenues include state 
capital appropriations, capital gifts and grants and additions to permanent endowments.  
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• Student tuition and fee revenues, auxiliary enterprises revenues, and the corresponding student aid 
expenses, are reported net of scholarship discounts and allowances in the Statements of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference between 
the stated charge for goods and services provided by the institution and the amount that is paid by 
students and/or third parties making payments on the student’s behalf. For FY 2004 that amount is 
$38,156,805 (of which $30,563,601 is netted against student tuition and fees and $7,593,204 is netted 
against auxiliary enterprises revenues). In FY 2003 that amount was $33,699,058 (of which 
$26,817,711 was netted against student tuition and fees and $6,881,347 was netted against auxiliary 
enterprises revenues). 

• Auxiliary enterprises revenues consist of the sales and services of such activities as residence halls, 
dining services, intercollegiate athletics, airport operations, telephone operations and campus recreation. 
The bulk of this revenue is the activity of the Residence and Dining Hall auxiliary whose room and board 
rates were increased 8% in FY 2004 over FY 2003, which was previously increased 8% over FY 2002. 

• The University, as a component unit of the State of Ohio, is required to report its operating expenses on 
the face of its financial statements using a functional view. Functional categories are presented as defined 
by the National Association of College and University Business Officers (“NACUBO”). In FY 2004 the 
University performed an analysis of all its unrestricted accounts for proper classification within those 
definitions. 

• The expense line “Student aid” represents institutional resources provided in excess of amounts owed by 
the students to the institution and refunded to them. It does not represent the amount of financial aid 
made available to students. 

• Expenditures for capital assets are capitalized on the Statement of Net Assets and systematically reduced 
through the use of depreciation expense in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Assets. The University has chosen to display depreciation on a separate line in the Statements of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets as opposed to allocating it among the various functional 
categories. 

• Allocated throughout the functional categories is the cost of the Early Retirement Incentive Plan 
(ERIP) discussed under “Financial Highlights of FY 2004”. The estimated cost for all employees who 
have elected the ERIP as of June 30, 2004 is $9.5 million. 

• State appropriations consist primarily of state share of instruction revenues. State support continues to 
decline in prominence relative to other income streams. 

• Investment income increased over last year by $2,754,244. 
• State capital appropriations stayed fairly even with FY 2004 coming in at $13,216,346 compared to 

$12,623,786 in FY 2003. 
• Capital grants and gifts dropped to $5,612,306 in FY 2004 compared to $13,173,470 in FY 2003. The 

nature of this revenue stream is that it fluctuates in amount dependent on the particular grants and gifts 
received.  

The following charts depict total revenue by source for FY 2004, FY 2003 and FY 2002, respectively: 

2004 2003 2002
State appropriations $ 142,388,900 $ 142,006,365 $ 144,819,888
Student tuition and fees, net 183,845,137 163,581,009 143,115,709
Grants and contracts 77,254,757 82,130,090 72,219,822
Sales and services 10,683,223 9,097,035 6,926,473
Auxiliary enterprises, net 53,887,294 53,445,582 46,812,756
Investment income, net 7,650,469 4,896,225 (3,930,184)
State capital appropriations 13,216,346 12,623,786 32,658,816
Other 5,403,554 5,657,241 8,399,900

Total $ 494,329,680 $ 473,437,333 $ 451,023,180

Revenues by source
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The following chart depicts operating and nonoperating expenses for FY 2004, FY 2003 and FY 2002, 
respectively: 

2004 2003 2002

Instruction and departmental research $ 169,763,301 $ 170,495,306 $ 165,131,818
Separately budgeted research 29,321,541 26,388,575 27,255,898
Public service 18,039,685 16,205,555 14,879,215
Academic support 46,156,862 36,422,783 32,212,536
Student services 23,794,386 23,563,230 20,807,467
Institutional support 36,254,600 38,248,929 36,882,740
Operation and maintenance of plant 37,160,727 36,664,688 33,934,978
Student aid 11,214,000 12,201,431 5,706,074
Depreciation 27,310,496 24,215,215 21,979,684
Auxiliary enterprises 58,122,051 60,707,809 59,552,681
Interest on capital asset-related debt 5,022,680 3,762,188 5,453,686
Disposal and write-offs of plant facilities 434,369 765,403 767,581

Total $ 462,594,698 $ 449,641,112 $ 424,564,358

Expenses by source

 
• Extraordinary Items – Reversal of 2002 Workers’ Compensation allocation – For FY 2003, the State 

of Ohio reversed an earlier decision that required state-assisted universities to record a portion of the 
State’s workers’ compensation liability in their respective financial statements. This had a favorable 
impact on the University’s financial statements for FY 2003 with a resultant increase to net income in the 
amount of $7,049,597. There are no extraordinary items for FY 2004. 

• Senate Bill 6 ratios, one of the measures by which the University’s activities are monitored at the state 
level, returned a composite score of 3.1 in FY 2004 and 3.4 in each of FY 2003 and FY 2002. The highest 
possible score is 5.0. The University remained the same in the scores assigned to the primary reserve ratio 
(expendable net assets divided by operating expenses) and the net income ratio (change in total net assets 
divided by total revenues). The score assigned to the viability ratio (expendable net assets divided by 
plant debt) dropped by 1. This particular ratio is 30% of the composite score.  

Statement of Cash Flows 
The Statement of Cash Flows presents detailed information about the major sources and uses of cash. The 
four categories of presentation and their respective FY 2004, FY 2003 and FY 2002 amounts are: 

      2004 2003 2002 
Net cash used in operating activities $(140,900,912) $(152,681,747) $(157,250,400)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 174,437,158  172,899,737 177,469,952 
Net cash provided by (used in) capital financing activities 3,862,416  (41,269,983) (24,215,217)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 15,326,363  4,373,695 (6,250,226)
 

Total cash and cash equivalents increased to $79,938,032 compared to $27,213,007 in FY 2003 and 
$43,891,305 in FY 2002. 
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 
Major capital additions completed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 and the primary resources that funded 
their acquisition/construction included (in millions): 

Bentley Hall Renovation and Annex $ 19.2  Capital Appropriations and Sale of Bonds 
Margaret M. Walter Hall  13.7  Sale of Bonds and Private Gift 
District Water Cooling  13.4  Capital Appropriations and Sale of Bonds 
Performance Contracting  6.6  Sale of Bonds and Internal Funding 
Innovation Center  6.1  Sale of Bonds and Federal Grants 
Read Hall Renovation  4.3  Internal Funds 
Utility Infrastructure Project  3.9  Sale of Bonds 
Bennett Hall Improvements - Chillicothe Campus  3.3  Capital Appropriations and Internal Funding 
Richard H. McFarland Avionics Building  1.8  Sale of Bonds and Internal Funding 
Golf Course Reconfiguration  1.6  Capital Appropriations and Internal Funding 
Yamada International House Renovation/Addition  1.5  Private Gift, Capital Appropriations and Internal Funding 
 
Cumulative costs associated with capital projects continuing after the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 totaled 
approximately $27.6 million at June 30, 2004. These projects include (in millions): 

University Center $ 9.2 
Bromley Hall Renovation  4.1 
Lausche Heating Plant Fluesorbent Processing  3.6 
Putnam Hall Rehabilitation  3.2 
Lausche Heating Plant Upgrade  1.0 

The University’s estimated future capital commitments, for which funding has been identified, total 
approximately $64,388,000 at June 30, 2004. 

Debt Administration 
At year-end, the University had $175,380,000 in bonds and notes obligations outstanding versus $132,665,000 at 
the end of FY 2003 and $125,880,000 at the end of FY 2002. The University’s Standard and Poor’s revenue bond 
rating of A+ and Moody’s revenue bond rating of A1 have not changed from the prior year. The footnotes to the 
financial statements provide additional details of the issuances and retirements of debt in FY 2004. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS THAT WILL AFFECT THE FUTURE 

The University provided for a 3.5% salary/wage increase for FY 2005. In addition, $750,000 has been set 
aside centrally for equity adjustments for faculty and staff to address inequities across positions within 
departments, across the campus and in comparisons with peers across the State. Planning units are expected to 
match the central funding with 25% of unit funds in order to qualify. 

Tuition rates for FY 2005 have increased by a rate of 9%, with room and board rates increasing by 3%.  

The University is projecting a 2% drop in state share of instruction for FY 2005. The next State of Ohio 
biennial budget does not promise to deliver better news to those with budgeting and planning responsibilities. 
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The University has an obligation to its students, their families and the taxpayers of the State of Ohio to ensure 
that it operates as efficiently and effectively as possible. Along that line an Accounting/Business Services 
Task Force has been created to explore whether the University can attain greater efficiencies through some 
level of consolidation or centralization of the business function across campus. Other university models are 
being examined for viability on Ohio University’s campuses. 

The goal of attracting and retaining quality faculty and staff is of paramount importance to all the University 
hopes to accomplish. Issues of increasing health care costs and the University’s desire to remain competitive 
in the pay structure for faculty and staff present the challenges to be faced. A Health Benefits Task Force has 
been created to explore the University’s health benefits package to ensure that it is competitive and to 
examine the structure of the benefits to ensure it encourages judicious use. Conservative budgeting has 
afforded the University positive health care variances in the last few years, which have been set aside in 
reserves to use in University health care strategies. 

Dr. Roderick McDavis became the 20th President of Ohio University on July 1, 2004. Previously he held the 
position of Provost at Virginia Commonwealth University. He is a graduate of Ohio University and so 
continues his devotion to Ohio University in his current role. A number of initiatives have been identified by 
Dr. McDavis that will set a course for the months to come. Among those initiatives are: 

• Increase Diversity Among Students, Faculty, Administration and Staff – Dr. McDavis has challenged 
the University community to increase the percent of minority enrollment from the present day of 6%. One 
tool to use in that campaign is a scholarship program called the Urban Scholars Program, designed to 
attract students from urban areas. 

• Strengthen and Expand the Base of Financial Support – A goal has been set to increase out-of-state 
enrollment, to increase the level of outside support for research and to take advantage of entrepreneurial 
opportunities to increase revenue. Success in these areas will mitigate the uncertainty of the level of state 
support. 

• Build the University’s Reputation as a Prominent Research University and Raise National 
Rankings of Academic and Research Programs – The latest “U.S. News and World Report’ rankings 
showed Ohio University moving to the 98th spot from No. 107 in the ranking among doctoral universities. 

• Increase Partnerships Locally, Statewide, Nationally and Internationally – The intent in creating 
these partnerships is to enhance economic development opportunities for the region. 

Under the leadership of Interim Provost Kathy Krendl, a Presidential Task Force on the future of Ohio 
University is being formed to chart the path that will lead us to the successful accomplishment of these goals. 
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OHIO UNIVERSITY 
(A Component Unit of the State of Ohio)

STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS 
JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

 The Ohio  The Ohio
Primary University Primary University

ASSETS Institution Foundation MCI Institution Foundation MCI

CURRENT ASSETS:
  Cash and cash equivalents 34,240,775$   10,009,291$  1,165,401$ 12,226,980$  8,271,692$     105,478$   
  Investments 83,968,220     45,740,364   56,203      90,360,051   46,104,776                   
  Accounts and pledges receivable—net 37,698,411     12,354,752   1,839,961 38,766,796   7,515,671       1,756,311 
  Accrued interest  and dividends receivable 313,327          126,535                      515,972        291,076          1,437        
  Notes receivable—net 2,844,659       49,761                        1,934,318     94,761                          
  Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 17,408,774     1,871,358     6,748        11,477,965   1,761,490       358,567    
  Inventories 1,653,341       1,125,984                        1,536,875       680,379                           

           Total current assets 178,127,507   71,278,045     3,068,313   156,818,957   64,719,845     2,221,793   

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
  Restricted cash and cash equivalents 45,697,257     3,059,378                   14,986,027   4,330,998                     
  Pledges receivable—net                    9,225,298                                       7,633,664                     
  Bequests receivable                    1,558,378                                       390,000                        
  Cash surrender value—life insurance policies                    2,636,067                                       2,422,464                     
  Charitable remainder trusts                    1,324,704                                       1,087,527                     
  Charitable remainder annuities                    3,659,103                                       3,193,969                     
  Investment in unconsolidated subsidiary                                      33,569                                             25,741      
  Endowment investments 11,836,376     96,970,424                 11,727,151   82,971,048                   
  Notes receivable—net 8,821,634                                       9,095,190                                      
  Intangible assets and deferred charges                    3,418,197                                       2,980,459                     
  Capital assets—net 481,247,608   34,435,826                      453,103,537   35,942,618                      

           Total noncurrent assets 547,602,875   156,287,375   33,569        488,911,905   140,952,747   25,741        

TOTAL ASSETS 725,730,382$ 227,565,420$ 3,101,882$ 645,730,862$ 205,672,592$ 2,247,534$ 

See notes to the financial statements. (Continued)

June 30, 2004 June 30, 2003
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OHIO UNIVERSITY 
(A Component Unit of the State of Ohio)

STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS 
JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

 The Ohio The Ohio
Primary University Primary University

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS Institution Foundation MCI Institution Foundation MCI

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 38,973,394$    3,346,030$     543,803$    38,890,077$   6,072,909$      1,204,937$
  Deferred revenue 21,417,003                                         20,418,048                                        
  Refunds and other liabilities 1,971,239        3,755,134                     2,273,998      3,638,852                       
  Capital lease obligations 93,017                                                249,836                                             
  Bonds and notes payable 15,597,740      1,013,094                     30,642,761    958,332                          
  Deposits held in custody for others 483,028           337,728                             972,275           417,618                             

           Total current liabilities 78,535,421      8,451,986        543,803       93,446,995      11,087,711      1,204,937    

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
  Compensated absences 11,478,477                                         12,249,793                                        
  Capital lease obligations 119,147                                              87,366                                               
  Bonds and notes payable 159,782,260    33,325,046                   102,022,239  33,400,215                     
  Bond premium—net 5,548,806        
  Refundable advances for federal student loans 7,781,778                                                 7,174,958                                                 

           Total noncurrent liabilities 184,710,468    33,325,046                        121,534,356    33,400,215                        

           Total liabilities 263,245,889    41,777,032      543,803       214,981,351    44,487,926      1,204,937    

DHI MINORITY INTEREST                      3,958,041                                           2,530,253                       

NET ASSETS:
  Invested in capital assets—net of related debt 345,803,896    6,105,204                     334,620,636  8,628,616                       
  Restricted:
    Nonexpendable 11,836,376      96,970,424                   11,727,151    82,971,048                     
    Expendable 42,898,264      84,651,271                   33,749,128    78,073,910                     
  Unrestricted 61,945,957      (5,896,552)       2,558,079    50,652,596      (11,019,161)     1,042,597    

           Total net assets 462,484,493    181,830,347    2,558,079    430,749,511    158,654,413    1,042,597    

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 725,730,382$  227,565,420$  3,101,882$ 645,730,862$  205,672,592$  2,247,534$ 

See notes to the financial statements. (Concluded)

June 30, 2003June 30, 2004
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
(A Component Unit of the State of Ohio)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

 The Ohio The Ohio
Primary University Primary University

Institution Foundation MCI Institution Foundation MCI
OPERATING REVENUES:
  Student tuition and fees—net of
    scholarship allowances 183,845,137$  -     $               -     $           163,581,009$ -     $               -     $             
  Federal grants and contracts 28,968,560                                         26,208,619                                          
  State grants and contracts 5,554,850                                           8,262,062                                            
  Local grants and contracts 686,248                                              634,608                                               
  Private grants and contracts 8,400,998                                           6,417,402                                            
  Sales and services 10,683,223                                         9,097,035                                            
  Auxiliary enterprises—net of 53,887,294                                         53,445,582                                          
    scholarship allowances
  Patient and professional services                                          4,169,159                                             10,455,443  
  Other sources 5,392,953         28,544,446                  5,641,142       23,356,626                      

           Total operating revenues 297,419,263     28,544,446   4,169,159  273,287,459   23,356,626     10,455,443  

OPERATING EXPENSES:
  Educational and general:
    Instruction and departmental research 169,763,301     4,862,511                    170,495,306   5,779,265                        
    Separately budgeted research 29,321,541       574,321                        26,388,575     477,822                            
    Public service 18,039,685       131,273                        16,205,555     96,787                              
    Academic support 46,156,862       1,635,454                    36,422,783     1,160,733                        
    Student services 23,794,386       452,369                        23,563,230     502,694                            
    Institutional support 36,254,600       8,653,545                    38,248,929     7,809,867                        
    Operation and maintenance of plant 37,160,727       4,203                            36,664,688     7,172                                
    Student aid 11,214,000       3,781,519                    12,201,431     3,701,191                        
    Depreciation 27,310,496       1,840,144                    24,215,215     1,439,230       2,500           
  Auxiliary enterprises 58,122,051                                         60,707,809                                          
  Operating expenses—Foundation
    subsidiaries and MCI                       23,107,782   2,662,289                         19,205,703     10,003,840  

           Total operating expenses 457,137,649     45,043,121   2,662,289  445,113,521   40,180,464     10,006,340  

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (159,718,386)$ (16,498,675)$ 1,506,870$ (171,826,062)$ (16,823,838)$  449,103$      

See notes to the financial statements. (Continued)

2004 2003
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
(A Component Unit of the State of Ohio)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

The Ohio  The Ohio
Primary University Primary University

Institution Foundation MCI Institution Foundation MCI
NONOPERATING REVENUES
  AND EXPENSES:
  State appropriations 142,388,900$  -     $                -     $           142,006,365$ -     $                -     $           
  Federal grants 20,741,312                                         20,835,465                                        
  State grants 5,458,934                                           4,484,965                                          
  Local grants                                                         6,130                                                   
  Private gifts 1,831,549        8,148,727                     2,107,369      7,245,917                       
  University support                      3,471,369                                           3,523,995                       
  Investment income—net of
    investment expense 7,650,469        15,204,508    8,612         4,896,225      (1,731,331)       49,627       
  Income taxes                                                                                                    (5,476)        
  Interest on capital asset-related debt (5,022,680)                                          (3,762,188)                                         
  Disposal and write-offs of plant facilities (434,369)                                             (765,403)                             2,098         

           Net nonoperating revenues 172,614,115    26,824,604    8,612         169,808,928  9,038,581        46,249       

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OTHER
  REVENUES, EXPENSES, GAINS OR LOSSES 12,895,729      10,325,929    1,515,482  (2,017,134)     (7,785,257)       495,352     

OTHER REVENUES, EXPENSES,
  GAINS, OR LOSSES
  State capital appropriations 13,216,346                                         12,623,786                                        
  Capital grants and gifts 5,612,306                                           13,173,470                                        
  Additions to permanent endowments 10,601            12,850,005                   16,099            5,394,895                       

           Total other revenues 18,839,253      12,850,005    -                 25,813,355    5,394,895        -                 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
  EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS 31,734,982      23,175,934    1,515,482  23,796,221    (2,390,362)       495,352     

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS—
  Reversal of 2002 Workers’
    Compensation allocation                                                         7,049,597                                          

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS 31,734,982      23,175,934      1,515,482    30,845,818      (2,390,362)       495,352       

NET ASSETS:
  Beginning of year 430,749,511    158,654,413  1,042,597  399,903,693  161,044,775    547,245     

  End of year 462,484,493$  181,830,347$ 2,558,079$ 430,749,511$ 158,654,413$  1,042,597$

See notes to the financial statements. (Concluded)

2004 2003
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(A Component Unit of the State of Ohio)

2004 2003
Primary Primary

Institution Institution
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  Student tuition and fees 179,723,774$   151,400,163$  
  Grants and contracts 40,563,341      25,802,126     
  Payments to suppliers (93,008,659)     (71,111,746)    
  Payments to employees (238,684,000)   (236,090,000)  
  Payments for benefits (64,135,706)     (66,545,837)    
  Payments for scholarships and fellowships (35,144,707)     (38,668,868)    
  Loans issued to students (4,372,213)       (3,115,819)      
  Collection of loans to students 2,753,629        2,497,686       
  Auxiliary enterprise sales 52,171,874      54,926,830     
  Sales and services 10,122,265      11,080,524     
  Other receipts (payments) 9,109,490        17,143,194     

           Net cash used in operating activities (140,900,912)   (152,681,747)  

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
  State appropriations 142,388,900    142,006,365   
  Gifts and grants for other than capital purposes 32,387,439      27,433,929     
  Federal direct student loan programs receipts 101,983,848    89,197,992     
  Federal direct student loan programs disbursements (102,471,723)   (89,197,992)    
  Student organization agency transactions 148,694           3,459,443       

           Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 174,437,158    172,899,737   

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
  Proceeds from capital debt 121,323,917    22,800,000     
  Capital appropriations 12,453,069      13,291,782     
  Capital grants and gifts received 5,612,306        13,173,470     
  Purchases of capital assets (56,120,155)     (68,629,434)    
  Principal paid on capital debt and leases (73,185,637)     (16,685,481)    
  Interest paid on capital debt and leases (6,221,084)       (5,220,320)      

           Net cash provided by (used in) capital financing activities 3,862,416        (41,269,983)    

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
  Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 22,771,506      62,986,320     
  Investment income 5,121,337        1,746,394       
  Purchase of investments (12,566,480)     (60,359,019)    

           Net cash provided by investing activities 15,326,363      4,373,695       

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 52,725,025      (16,678,298)    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of year 27,213,007      43,891,305     

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—End of year 79,938,032$     27,213,007$    

See notes to the financial statements. (Continued)

Ohio University

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003
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(A Component Unit of the State of Ohio)

2004 2003
Primary Primary

Institution Institution
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH 
  USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  Operating income (loss) (159,718,386)$ (171,826,062)$
  Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
    cash used in operating activities:
    Depreciation expense 27,310,496     24,215,215    
    Changes in assets and liabilities:
      Accounts receivable—net (2,296,880)      (3,418,847)     
      Notes receivable—net (1,706,508)      (339,718)        
      Deferred revenue (298,062)         3,751,477      
      Prepaid expenses and deferred charges (1,832,604)      (5,471,475)     
      Inventories (116,466)         64,032           
      Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (1,939,743)      209,044         
      Refunds and other liabilities (302,759)         134,587         

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (140,900,912)$ (152,681,747)$

See notes to financial statements. (Concluded)

Ohio University

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003
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OHIO UNIVERSITY  
(A Component Unit of the State of Ohio) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

(a) Organization 

Ohio University (“University”) is a public institution established by the State of Ohio (“State”) in 1804 
under Chapter 3337 of the Ohio Revised Code (“ORC”). As such it is a component unit of the State of 
Ohio and is included as a discretely presented entity in the State of Ohio’s Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report. The University is the oldest of the state-assisted universities in Ohio. It is defined by 
statute to be a body politic and corporate and an instrumentality of the State.  

The University is governed by a 13-member Board of Trustees. The Governor, with the advice and 
consent of the State Senate, appoints 9 trustees for staggered 9-year nonrenewable terms. In addition, 2 
non-voting student members are appointed to the Board of Trustees for staggered 2-year terms. The 
Ohio University Board of Trustees created 2 new National Trustee positions and have invited 2 
distinguished out-of-state University alumni to sit with the Trustees and participate in the deliberations 
of the Board. One term is 2 years and the other is 3 years. Both are non-voting members.  

(b) Basis of Presentation 

The financial statements of the University have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) 
including Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – 
for State and Local Governments, and GASB No. 35, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis – for Public Colleges and Universities (an amendment of GASB No. 34). The 
presentation required by GASB No. 34 and GASB No. 35 provides a comprehensive, entity-wide 
perspective of the University’s assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues, expenses and changes in net assets 
and cash flows. It replaces fund-groups with net asset-groups, and requires the direct method of cash 
flow presentation.  

The University follows all GASB pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(“FASB”) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinions and 
Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedures issued on or before 
November 30, 1989 unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. 
The University has elected not to apply FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 
1989. 

The accompanying financial statements comply with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 14, The 
Financial Reporting Entity, in that the financial statements include all the organizations, activities, 
functions and component units for which the University is financially accountable. Financial 
accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s board and 
either (1) the University’s ability to impose its will over the component unit or (2) the possibility that the 
component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the University. The 
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University has blended the presentation of its component unit, Athena Cinemas Company, and presents 
discretely its component unit, Ohio University Osteopathic Medical Center, Inc. (“MCI”).  

The accompanying financial statements display MCI as a discretely presented component unit to comply 
with GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity. MCI reports a fiscal year end of 
January 31, on a cash basis, which is converted to the accrual basis for presentation herein. 

GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units, an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and implemented by the University effective July 1, 2003, 
further clarifies that certain organizations warrant inclusion as part of the financial reporting entity 
because of the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government, including their 
ongoing financial support of the primary government. The University has determined that The Ohio 
University Foundation (“Foundation”) meets this definition and is therefore included as a discretely 
presented component unit in the University’s financial statements. 

The accompanying financial statements display the Foundation as a discretely presented component unit. 
The Foundation’s financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the FASB. 

(c) Basis of Accounting 

The University is a special-purpose government engaged only in business type activities as defined by 
GASB Statements No. 34 and No. 35. Accordingly, the financial statements are presented using an 
economic resources measurement focus and are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when incurred. All 
significant interfund transactions have been eliminated. The financial statements of all discretely 
component units are also presented under the accrual basis of accounting. 

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash consists primarily of petty cash, cash in banks and money market accounts. Cash equivalents are 
short-term highly liquid investments readily converted to cash with original maturities of three months 
or less. 

(e) Investments 

All investments are carried at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. Investments in publicly 
traded securities are stated at fair value as established by major securities markets. Nonpublicly traded 
investments are valued based on independent appraisals and estimates considering market prices of 
similar investments. Changes in unrealized gain (loss) on the carrying value of investments are reported 
as a component of investment income in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. 
Investments classified as current assets in the statements of net assets include those that can be 
withdrawn on demand. 

(f) Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable consist of amounts due for tuition and fees, grants and contracts, and auxiliary 
enterprise services. Grants and contracts accounts receivable include amounts due from the Federal 
government, State and local governments, or private sources, as reimbursement of certain expenditures 
made in accordance with agreements. Uncollectible amounts have been reserved. 
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(g) Inventories 

Inventories are stated at lower of weighted-average cost or net realizable value. 

(h) Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents are primarily funds externally restricted for capital expenditures 
subject to bond and note agreements and are either held by bond trustees or temporarily invested in 
STAROhio. In addition, it includes some funds held in escrow for successful completion of construction 
contracts. 

(i) Capital Assets 

Capital assets are presented in the statements of net assets of the University. Purchased or constructed 
capital assets are recorded at cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair market 
value as of the date received. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful life of the asset.  

Following are the capitalization levels and estimated useful lives of the asset classes: 

Asset class Capitalize at Estimated useful life

Land Any amount N/A
Land improvements $100,000 N/A
Works of art and historical treasures $2,500 N/A
Infrastructure $100,000 10-50 years
Buildings Any amount 40 years
Machinery and equipment $2,500 5-25 years
Library books and publications Any amount 10 years
Transportation equipment $2,500 5-10 years  

Building renovations that materially increase the value or extend the useful life of the structure are also 
capitalized. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs are not capitalized. Interest incurred during the 
construction of capital assets is included in the cost of the asset when capitalized. Land, land 
improvements and works of art and historical treasures are not depreciated. 

(j) Deferred Revenue 

Deferred revenue includes amounts received for tuition and fees and certain auxiliary activities prior to 
the end of the fiscal year, related to the subsequent accounting period. The effect of not allocating the 
summer term between fiscal years does not have a significant impact on the financial statement 
presentation. 

(k) Compensated Absences 

University employees earn vacation and sick leave benefits based, in part, on length of service. Upon 
separation from service, employees are paid their accumulated vacation and sick pay based upon the 
nature of separation (termination, retirement or death). Certain limitations are placed on the hours of 
vacation and sick leave that employees may accumulate and carry over for payment at termination, 
retirement or death. Unused hours exceeding their limitations are forfeited. The liability incurred is 
recorded at year-end in the statements of net assets, and as a component of operating expense in the 
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. 
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(l) Net Assets 

The University’s net assets are categorized as described below: 

Invested in capital assets—net of related debt:  This represents the University’s investment in capital 
assets, net of debt obligations related to those capital assets. 

Restricted net assets-nonexpendable:  Restricted nonexpendable net assets represent contributed 
values of permanent endowments restricted or unrestricted as to income. 

Restricted net assets-expendable:  Restricted expendable net assets represent assets that are restricted 
by a third party either legally or contractually.  

Unrestricted net assets:  Unrestricted net assets are resources derived primarily from student tuition, 
fees, state appropriations, and auxiliary enterprises. These net assets are used for general obligations 
of the University. They may be used at the discretion of the Board of Trustees for any purpose 
furthering the University’s mission. 

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources, the 
University’s policy is to apply the expense at the discretion of University management. 

(m) Income Taxes 

The University is an organization described in Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the 
“Code”) and has further been classified as an organization that is not a private foundation in accordance 
with Sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(ii) of the Code. However, certain revenues are considered 
unrelated business income and are taxable under Internal Revenue Code Sections 511 through 513.  

(n) Classification of Revenues 

Revenues are classified as either operating or nonoperating according to the following: 

Operating revenues:  Operating revenues include revenues from activities that have characteristics 
similar to exchange transactions. These include student tuition and fees (net of scholarship discounts and 
allowances), sales and services of auxiliary enterprises (net of scholarship discounts and allowances), 
and certain Federal, State, local and private grants and contracts. 

Nonoperating revenues:  Nonoperating revenues include revenues from activities that have the 
characteristics of nonexchange transactions, such as State appropriations, and certain Federal, State, 
local and private gifts and grants. Nonoperating revenues also include investment income. 

(o) Scholarship Discounts and Allowances 

Student tuition and fees revenue, and certain other payments recorded as auxiliary enterprises revenue, 
are net of scholarship discounts and allowances in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in 
net assets. Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference between the charge for tuition and 
fees, and the amount paid by students or by third parties making the payments on the students’ behalf. 
As of June 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively, scholarship discounts and allowances are $38,156,805 (of 
which $30,563,601 is netted against student tuition and fees and $7,593,204 is netted against auxiliary 
enterprises revenues) and $33,699,058 (of which $26,817,711 is netted against student tuition and fees 
and $6,881,347 is netted against auxiliary enterprises revenues). 
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(p) Auxiliary Enterprises 

Auxiliary revenues are derived primarily from revenues generated from residence halls, dining services, 
intercollegiate athletics, airport operations, telephone operations, and campus recreation. They are 
shown net of scholarship discounts and allowances, primarily for room and board. 

(q) Eliminations 

The University eliminates interfund assets and liabilities, and revenues and expenses related to internal 
activities. 

(r) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America (“GAAP”) may require management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect certain amounts reported in the financial statements. The estimates and assumptions are based 
on currently available information and actual results could differ from those estimates. 

(s) Newly Issued Accounting Pronouncements 

In March, 2003, GASB issued Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures. This 
statement requires certain disclosures of investments that have fair values that are highly sensitive to 
changes in interest rate risk. The provisions of this statement are effective for financial statements for 
periods beginning after June 15, 2004. The University has not yet evaluated the impact that the adoption 
of this statement will have on its financial statements. 

In November, 2003, GASB issued Statement No. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries. This statement requires certain disclosures 
when the value of a capital asset has declined significantly and unexpectedly. This statement also 
clarifies and establishes accounting requirements for insurance recoveries. The provisions of this 
statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2004. The 
University has not yet evaluated the impact that the adoption of this statement will have on its financial 
statements.  

In April, 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other 
than Pension Plans. The standards in this statement apply for trust funds included in the financial reports 
of plan sponsors or employers, as well as for the stand-alone financial reports of OPEB plans or the 
public employee retirement systems, or other third parties, that administer them. The provisions of this 
statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2005. The 
University has not yet evaluated the impact that the adoption of this statement will have on its financial 
statements. 

In June 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This statement establishes standards for the 
measurement, recognition and display of other postemployment benefit expenses/expenditures and 
related liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and, if applicable, required supplementary information 
(“RSI”) in the financial reports of employers subject to governmental accounting standards. The 
provisions of this statement are effective for financial statements for fiscal periods beginning after 
December 15, 2006. The University has not yet evaluated the impact that the adoption of this statement 
will have on its financial statements.  
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(t) Reclassifications 

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current-year presentations.  

2. DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND 
INVESTMENTS  

The University manages cash and investments in accordance with the Board of Trustees’ policy that 
conforms to the authority granted by the Ohio Revised Code. The purchase of specific investment 
instruments is at the discretion of the University Treasurer within these policy guidelines. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The University’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, 
deposits and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. As of June 30, 
2004 and 2003, current cash and cash equivalents for the University are $34,240,775 and $12,226,980, 
respectively. Bond proceeds held by bond trustees and bond anticipation note proceeds held in 
STAROhio are the primary components of restricted cash and cash equivalents.  In addition it includes 
some funds held in escrow for the successful completion of construction contracts.  The amounts for 
restricted cash and cash equivalents are $45,697,257 and $14,986,027 at June 30, 2004 and 2003, 
respectively. 

At June 30, 2004, the carrying amount of the University's cash and cash equivalents, including restricted 
and excluding cash on hand of $86,986 is $79,851,046 and the bank balance is $83,975,631. At June 30, 
2003, the amount of the University’s deposits, including restricted and excluding cash on hand of 
$113,197 was $27,099,810 and the bank balance was $31,209,211.  The differences between carrying 
amount and bank balances are caused by outstanding checks and deposits in transit.  Of the bank 
balance:  

• $513,573 and $546,738 are covered by federal depository insurance as of June 30, 2004 and 
2003, respectively. 

• $2,317,499 and $12,472,979 are held in STAROhio.  STAROhio is an investment pool managed 
by the State Treasurer’s Office that allows governments within the State to pool their funds for 
investment purposes. STAROhio is not registered with the Securities Exchange Commission as 
an investment company, but does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the 
Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in STAROhio are valued at STAROhio’s share 
price, which is the price the investment could be sold for on June 30, 2004. 

Investments in STAROhio are backed by the securities purchased by STAROhio. Historically, 
over 90% of the investments purchased by STAROhio are U.S. government obligations and all 
securities purchased are held in a third party custodial arrangement on behalf of STAROhio. 

• $81,144,559 and $18,189,494 are covered by collateral held by third party trustees pursuant to 
Section 135.181 of the Ohio Revised Code in collateral pools securing all public funds on 
deposit with specific depository institutions, as of June 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. 

Investments—The University’s investments, both current and noncurrent, are categorized below to give 
an indication of the level of custodial credit risk assumed by the entity at year-end. Category 1 includes 
investments that are insured or registered or securities held by the University or its agent in the 
University’s name. Category 2 includes investments that are uninsured and unregistered with securities 
held by the counterparty or its trust department in the University’s name. Category 3 includes 
investments that are uninsured and unregistered with securities held by the counterparty or its trust 
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department but not in the University’s name. All long-term investments except for certain fixed income 
holdings reported in Category 2 are deposited in mutual funds with various managers. The investments 
are registered in each manager’s name and the University’s ownership is recorded in the managers’ 
internal records. The investments in mutual funds and STAROhio are not required to be categorized due 
to their nature. 

2004 2003
Fair value Fair value

Category 2:
  U.S. Treasury obligations 1,776,655$  5,345,479$    
  U.S. Agency obligations 5,666,552   7,871,393      
  U.S. Corporate obligations 3,564,222   9,382,428      
Category 3:
  Money market funds 588,401      2,072,284      
Not Catagorized:
  Mutual funds 84,208,766 77,415,618    

Total 95,804,596$ 102,087,202$  

The fair value of investments is based on market values provided by a third party. 

The University’s investment strategy incorporates certain financial instruments that involve, to varying 
degrees, elements of market risk and credit risk in excess of amounts recorded in the financial 
statements. Market risk is the potential for changes in the value of financial instruments due to market 
changes, including interest and foreign exchange rate movements and rate fluctuations embodied in 
forward, futures, commodity or security prices. Market risk is directly impacted by the volatility and 
liquidity of the markets in which the related underlying assets are traded. Credit risk is the possibility 
that a loss may occur due to the failure of the counterparty to perform according to the terms of the 
contract. The University’s risk of loss in the event of a counterparty default is typically limited to the 
amounts recognized in the statements of net assets and is not represented by the contract or notional 
amounts of the instruments. 

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE  

The composition of accounts receivable at June 30, 2004 and 2003, is summarized as follows: 

2004 2003

Student receivables for fees, room and board 11,478,936$ 9,837,176$  
Research and other sponsored programs 18,569,393 20,013,266  
Other 11,436,722 12,373,383  

41,485,051 42,223,825  

Less allowance for doubtful accounts (3,786,640)  (3,457,029)   

Net accounts receivable 37,698,411$ 38,766,796$  
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4. NOTES RECEIVABLE  

The University notes receivable at June 30, 2004 and 2003, is net of allowances for uncollectible 
amounts of $1,069,723 and $999,940, respectively. Principal repayment and interest terms vary. Federal 
loan programs are funded primarily through Federal contributions under Perkins and various nursing 
programs. 

The University distributed $102,471,723 and $89,197,992 for student loans through the U.S. Department 
of Education Federal Direct Lending program during the years ended June 30, 2004, and 2003, 
respectively. These distributions and the related funding sources are included as cash disbursements and 
cash receipts in the accompanying statements of cash flows. 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS 

The following tables present the changes in the various fixed asset class categories for the years ended 
June 30, 2004 and June 30, 2003 for the University:  

Balance Transfers Balance
July 1, 2003 Additions In (Out) Retirements June 30, 2004

Capital assets not being depreciated:
  Land 16,249,524$   -     $               (47,300)$        -     $             16,202,224$   
  Land improvements 4,701,091                                                                4,701,091      
  Construction in progress 69,163,238    37,794,806   (79,354,804)                      27,603,240    
  Works of art and historical treasures 6,125,757      1,151,255     926,540                             8,203,552      

           Total capital assets not
             being depreciated 96,239,610    38,946,061   (78,475,564)  -                     56,710,107    

Capital assets being depreciated:
  Infrastructure 60,508,864    624,789         26,705,660                       87,839,313    
  Buildings 455,562,688  188,316         51,769,904                       507,520,908  
  Machinery and equipment 94,071,723    7,222,402                        (3,521,078)    97,773,047    
  Library books and publications 67,350,815    3,407,490                                            70,758,305    
  Transportation equipment 14,440,863    5,731,097                        (2,050,976)    18,120,984    

           Total capital assets being depreciated 691,934,953  17,174,094   78,475,564   (5,572,054)    782,012,557  

           Total capital assets 788,174,563  56,120,155   -                     (5,572,054)    838,722,664  

Less accumulated depreciation:
  Infrastructure 23,439,998    3,105,030                                            26,545,028    
  Buildings 199,528,067  10,954,759                                          210,482,826  
  Machinery and equipment 53,751,080    8,421,756                        (3,139,037)    59,033,799    
  Library books and publications 49,477,286    3,426,471                                            52,903,757    
  Transportation equipment 8,874,595      1,402,480                        (1,767,429)    8,509,646      

           Total accumulated depreciation 335,071,026  27,310,496   -                     (4,906,466)    357,475,056  

           Total capital assets being
             depreciated—net 356,863,927  (10,136,402)  78,475,564   (665,588)       424,537,501  

Capital assets—net 453,103,537$ 28,809,659$  -     $               (665,588)$     481,247,608$  
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Balance Transfers Balance
July 1, 2002 Additions In (Out) Retirements June 30, 2003

Capital assets not being depreciated:
  Land 16,249,524$   -     $             -     $               -     $             16,249,524$   
  Land improvements 3,026,340      1,674,751                                           4,701,091      
  Construction in progress 62,210,357    47,389,457  (40,436,576)                      69,163,238    
  Works of art and historical treasures 6,125,757                                                              6,125,757      

           Total capital assets not
             being depreciated 87,611,978    49,064,208  (40,436,576)  -                     96,239,610    

Capital assets being depreciated:
  Infrastructure 54,073,478    317,115       6,118,271                         60,508,864    
  Buildings 429,764,907  2,791,461    23,127,159   (120,839)       455,562,688  
  Machinery and equipment 82,918,194    9,423,457    10,037,709   (8,307,637)    94,071,723    
  Library books and publications 63,925,968    3,424,847                                           67,350,815    
  Transportation equipment 12,993,798    1,396,329    1,153,437     (1,102,701)    14,440,863    

           Total capital assets being depreciated 643,676,345  17,353,209  40,436,576   (9,531,177)    691,934,953  

           Total capital assets 731,288,323  66,417,417  -                     (9,531,177)    788,174,563  

Less accumulated depreciation:
  Infrastructure 21,307,389    2,132,609                                           23,439,998    
  Buildings 189,502,708  10,048,740                     (23,381)         199,528,067  
  Machinery and equipment 54,297,394    6,893,098                       (7,439,412)    53,751,080    
  Library books and publications 46,154,506    3,322,780                                           49,477,286    
  Transportation equipment 8,101,174      1,817,988                       (1,044,567)    8,874,595      

           Total accumulated depreciation 319,363,171  24,215,215  -                     (8,507,360)    335,071,026  

           Total capital assets being
             depreciated—net 324,313,174  (6,862,006)  40,436,576   (1,023,817)    356,863,927  

Capital assets—net 411,925,152$ 42,202,202$ -     $               (1,023,817)$ 453,103,537$  

6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities as of June 30, 2004 and June 30, 2003, consisted of the 
following: 

2004 2003

Accounts payable 13,554,580$ 15,441,458$
Accrued liabilities 25,418,814 23,448,619  

Total 38,973,394$ 38,890,077$  
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7. BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE 

The University’s bonds and notes payable at June 30, 2004 and 2003, are summarized as follows: 

July 1, 2003 Borrowed Retired June 30, 2004 Current

Subordinated general receipts bonds, -     $                52,885,000$   -     $             52,885,000$    455,000$      
  series 2004
Subordinated general receipts bonds, -                      47,860,000    -     47,860,000      2,575,000    
  series 2003
Subordinated general receipts bond anticipation -                      6,590,000      6,590,000    -                        -                   
  notes, series 2003B
Subordinated general receipts bond anticipation 14,400,000    -                      14,400,000  -                        -                   
  notes, series 2003A
General receipts bond anticipation notes 8,400,000      8,150,000      8,400,000    8,150,000        8,150,000    
Subordinated variable general receipts bonds, 42,120,000    -                      5,005,000    37,115,000      3,557,740    
  series 2001
General receipts bonds, series 1999 30,200,000    -                      830,000       29,370,000      860,000       
General receipts bonds, series 1993 37,545,000    -                      37,545,000  -                        -                   

Total bonds and notes payable 132,665,000$ 115,485,000$ 72,770,000$ 175,380,000$  15,597,740$

July 1, 2002 Borrowed Retired June 30, 2003 Current

Subordinated general receipts bond anticipation -     $                14,400,000$   -     $             14,400,000$    14,400,000$
  notes, series 2003A
General receipts bond anticipation notes 8,550,000      8,400,000      8,550,000    8,400,000        8,400,000    
Subordinated variable general receipts bonds, 46,310,000    -                      4,190,000    42,120,000      4,427,761    
  series 2001
General receipts bonds, series 1999 31,000,000    -                      800,000       30,200,000      830,000       
General receipts bonds, series 1993 40,020,000    -                      2,475,000    37,545,000      2,585,000    

Total bonds and notes payable 125,880,000$ 22,800,000$   16,015,000$ 132,665,000$  30,642,761$  

On March 15, 2004, the University issued $52,885,000 in Subordinated General Receipts Bonds, Series 
2004 (the “Series 2004 Bonds”). The proceeds were used to refund the Series 2003B notes, to retire an 
internal loan for the purchase of a King Air 350, and to finance construction of the University Center 
including costs associated with capitalized interest. 

On September 3, 2003, the University issued $47,860,000 in Subordinated General Receipts Bonds, 
Series 2003 (the “Series 2003 Bonds”). The proceeds were used to refund Series 1993 and the Series 
2003A notes. 

On October 30, 2003, the University issued $6,590,000 in Subordinated General Receipts Bond 
Anticipation Notes, Series 2003B in anticipation of the issuance of the Series 2004 Bonds. The proceeds 
were used for the following purposes:  costs associated with University Center site preparation, 
performance contracting (including Life Sciences heat recovery and steam extension to the Ridges), and 
the partial renovation of the Lausche Heating Plant. The interest rate on the notes was 1.80% and they 
matured on May 3, 2004. Prior to the maturity date, the notes were refinanced and rolled into the Series 
2004 issue.  

On March 12, 2003, the University issued $14,400,000 in Subordinated General Receipts Bond 
Anticipation Notes, Series 2003A in anticipation of the issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds. The proceeds 
were used for the following purposes:  construction costs associated with the Avionics Engineering 
Center and the Lecture Hall, design costs of the University Center, and to retire an internal loan to 
Regional Higher Education for the purchase of the Pickerington Center. The interest rate on the notes 
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was 1.69% and they matured on September 3, 2003. At that time the bond anticipation notes, along with 
the Series 1993 bonds, were refinanced.  

During the year ended June 30, 2004, the University issued a series of General Receipts Bond 
Anticipation Notes totaling $8,150,000, the proceeds of which are being used to finance the replacement 
of major administrative systems which include:  human resources, payroll, financial and the purchase of 
an imaging system. The principal payouts on such Notes were made as scheduled and the Notes were re-
issued. Notes outstanding of $8,150,000 at June 30, 2004 mature on January 20, 2005. Principal amounts 
of $4,725,000 and $3,425,000 bear interest rates of 1.45% and 1.50%, respectively. 

On May 3, 2001, the University issued $48,025,000 in Subordinated Variable Rate General Receipts 
Bonds, Series 2001 (the “Series 2001 Bonds”). The proceeds were for capital equipment and 
construction costs on various building projects. The balance outstanding as of June 30, 2004 was 
$37,115,000. 

On October 3, 2001, the University entered into a swap agreement with Morgan Guaranty Trust 
Company of New York to hedge $31,020,000 of the University’s Series 2001 Bonds. The swap 
agreement converts the Series 2001 Bonds’ variable interest rate to a fixed rate of 4.039%, settled on the 
first day of each month. The total amount paid related to the swap agreement for the year ended June 30, 
2004 and 2003 is $887,927 and $841,368, respectively. These amounts are included as an adjustment to 
interest on capital asset-related debt in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. 
As of June 30, 2004, the swap had a negative fair value of $578,172.  As the swap has a negative fair 
value the University is not exposed to credit risk.  However, should interest rates begin to rise; the 
negative fair value of the swap would be reduced and could eventually become positive.  At that point, 
the University would be exposed to the counterparty credit risk since the counterparty would be 
obligated to make payments to the University.  The occurrence of a credit event with respect to the 
University or the counterparty, defined as a reduction in the long term bond rating to less than Baa2 by 
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. or BBB by Standard & Poor’s, would result in termination of the swap 
agreement.  As of June 30, 2004, no termination events have occurred. 

On March 15, 1999, the University issued $32,520,000 in General Receipts Bonds, Series 1999, with 
which to pay construction costs on various building projects. The balance outstanding as of June 30, 
2004 was $29,370,000. 

On January 13, 1994, the University issued $55,450,000 in General Receipts Bonds, Series 1993, which 
were issued for advance refunds of the Series 1972, Series 1977 and Series 1978 General Receipts 
Bonds. The remaining proceeds from this issue were used for the payment of construction costs on the 
student recreation center. On September 3, 2003, the bonds were refinanced and rolled into the Series 
2003 issue.  

The 1999 issue (Superior Obligation) is bound by the provisions of the 1972 Trust Agreement (Prior 
Indenture) and its supplements as described below. The 1972 Trust Agreement and its supplements 
relates to the provisions of the General Receipts Bonds. These bonds are pledged on a gross pledge and 
first lien basis of the “General Receipts” of the University. The receipts include the full amount of every 
type and character of campus receipts, except for State appropriations and receipts previously pledged or 
otherwise restricted. The University has complied with all covenants of the Trust Agreement and its 
supplements.  

The First Supplemental Trust Agreement binds the 2001 bond issue. While Superior Obligation bonds 
issued are outstanding, the pledge and lien on the General Receipts authorized and granted on the 2001 
issue shall be subordinate to the pledge and lien on the General Receipts that secure the Superior 
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Obligations. The variable rate of interest in effect at June 30, 2004 was 1.08%. The average variable rate 
of interest for the year ending June 30, 2004 was 0.99%.  

The Second Supplemental Trust Agreement binds the 2003 bond issue. The Series 2003B Bond 
Anticipation Notes were issued pursuant to a Third Supplemental Trust Agreement. The Fourth 
Supplemental Trust Agreement binds the 2004 bond issue. 

Details of the series are as follows: 

Maturity Initial Issue Outstanding at
Series Interest Rate Fiscal Year Amount June 30, 2004

1999 3.60%-5.25% 2005-2025 32,520,000$ 29,370,000$  
2001 Variable 2005-2027 48,025,000  37,115,000    
2003 5.00%-5.25% 2005-2024 47,860,000  47,860,000    
2004 2.00%-5.00% 2005-2032 52,885,000  52,885,000    

167,230,000$  

Principal and interest payment requirements for the bonded debt for the years subsequent to June 30, 
2004 are summarized as follows: 

Year ended
June 30 Principal Interest Swap Interest Total

2005 7,447,740$    6,956,665$  1,207,498$  15,611,903$  
2006 9,642,738     6,171,589   1,141,777   16,956,104   
2007 8,139,522     5,881,509   1,070,946   15,091,977   
2008 8,685,000     5,596,682   1,000,013   15,281,695   
2009 9,215,000     5,275,029   919,086       15,409,115   
2010-2014 39,805,000   21,637,573 3,365,091   64,807,664   
2015-2019 37,515,000   14,541,191 1,185,191   53,241,382   
2020-2024 22,575,000   8,056,021   460,142       31,091,163   
2025-2029 15,680,000   3,433,942   89,728         19,203,670   
2030-2032 8,525,000       593,913        0                   9,118,913       

167,230,000$ 78,144,114$ 10,439,472$ 255,813,586$ 
 

8. LEASES 

The University has $212,164 in capital lease obligations that have varying maturity dates through 2008 
and carry implicit interest rates ranging from 3.27 % to 12.51 %. Lease arrangements are being used to 
provide partial financing for certain movable equipment. Capital asset balances as of June 30, 2004 that 
are financed under capital leases are $449,846. 
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Capital leases as of June 30, 2004 and 2003 are summarized as follows: 

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion

For the year ended:
   June 30, 2004 337,202$ 165,562$ (290,600)$ 212,164$ 93,017$  

   June 30, 2003 793,656$ 214,027$ (670,481)$ 337,202$ 249,836$  

The scheduled maturities of these leases as of June 30, 2004 are: 

Minimum
Lease

Payments

2005 102,826$
2006 59,790   
2007 43,034   
2008 23,700   

           Total minimum lease payments 229,350 

Less amount representing interest 17,186   

           Net minimum capital lease payments 212,164 

Less current portion 93,017   

Noncurrent capital lease obligations 119,147$  

9. OPERATING LEASES 

The University leases various buildings, office space, and equipment under operating lease agreements. 
These facilities and equipment are not recorded as assets on the balance sheet. The total rental expense 
under these agreements was $2,770,672 for the year ended June 30, 2004. 

Future minimum payments for all significant operating leases with initial terms in excess of one year as 
of June 30, 2004, are as follows: 

Years Ended
June 30

2005 2,908,746$
2006 2,188,716 
2007 1,764,122 
2008 660,734    
2009 389,770    
2010-2019 328,569    

Total minimum lease payments 8,240,657$  
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10. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

Per University policy, salaried faculty and staff earn vacation at the rate of 22 days per year with a 
maximum accrual of 32 days. Upon termination they are entitled to a payout of their accumulated 
balance. Hourly classified employees earn vacation at rates per years of service, ranging from 10 to 25 
days per year. The maximum accrual is equal to the amount earned in three years, which is subject to 
payout upon termination. The liability for accrued vacation at June 30, 2004 and 2003 amounted to 
approximately $8,712,000 and $9,274,000, respectively. 

All University employees are entitled to a sick leave credit equal to 15 days per year (earned on a pro-
rata monthly basis for salaried employees and on a pro-rata hourly basis for classified hourly 
employees). Salaried employees with 10 or more years of service are eligible to receive a payout upon 
retirement of up to 25% of unused days (maximum of 30 days). Hourly classified employees with 10 or 
more years of service are eligible for payout upon retirement of up to 50% of unused days (maximum of 
60 days). The liability for accrued sick leave at June 30, 2004 and 2003 amounted to approximately 
$3,880,000 and $4,126,000, respectively. 

A summary of compensated absences as of June 30, 2004 and 2003 follows: 

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion

For the year ended:
   June 30, 2004 13,399,793$ 384,950$   (1,192,785)$ 12,591,958$ 1,113,481$

   June 30, 2003 13,135,006$ 8,310,147$ (8,045,360)$ 13,399,793$ 1,150,000$  

11. RETIREMENT PLANS  

Defined Benefit Plans—All University employees are eligible to participate in contributory retirement 
plans that are administered by the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (“OPERS”) and 
the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (“STRS”). The particular system in which the employee 
enrolls is dependent on their position with the University. Both OPERS and STRS are cost sharing, 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans. Both systems provide retirement and disability 
benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. 
Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by state statute per Chapter 145 of the Ohio 
Revised Code. The payroll for employees covered by OPERS and STRS for the year ended June 30, 
2004 is $90,227,000 and $74,818,000, respectively. The payroll for employees covered by OPERS and 
STRS for the year ended June 30, 2003 is $93,473,000 and $74,118,000, respectively. For the years 
ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, the University’s total payroll is $238,684,000 and $236,090,000, 
respectively.  

Both OPERS and STRS issue a stand-alone financial report. Interested parties may obtain a copy of the 
OPERS report by making a written request to 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642 or by 
calling (614) 222-6705 or 1-800-222-PERS (7377). The STRS report may be obtained by making a 
written request to 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3771. 

Defined Contribution Plans—The Alternative Retirement Plan (“ARP”) is a defined contribution 
pension plan, under IRS section 401(a), and established by Ohio Amended Substitute House Bill 586 
(ORC 3305.02) on March 31, 1998 for public institutions of higher education. The University’s Board of 
Trustees adopted the University’s plan on April 18, 1998. Full-time salaried employees are eligible to 
choose a provider, in lieu of OPERS or STRS, from the list of eight providers currently approved by the 
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Ohio Department of Insurance and who hold agreements with the University. Employee and employer 
contributions equal to those required by STRS and OPERS are required for ARP, less any amounts 
required to be remitted to the state retirement system in which the employee would otherwise have been 
enrolled. 

Eligible employees have 120 days from their date of hire to make an irrevocable election to participate 
in the alternative retirement plan. Under this plan, employees who would have otherwise been required 
to be in STRS or OPERS and who elect to participate in the ARP must contribute the employee’s share 
of retirement contributions (10.0% STRS or 8.5% OPERS) to one of eight private providers approved by 
the Ohio Department of Insurance. The legislation mandates that the employer must contribute an 
amount to the state retirement system to which the employee would have otherwise belonged, based on 
an independent actuarial study commissioned by the Ohio Retirement Study Council and submitted to 
the Ohio Board of Regents. That amount is 0% for OPERS and 3.5% for STRS for the year ended 
June 30, 2004. The employer also contributes what would have been the employer’s share of the 
appropriate retirement system, less the aforementioned percentages, to the private provider selected by 
the employee. The University plan provides these employees with immediate plan vesting. 

ARP does not provide disability benefits, annual cost-of living adjustments, postretirement health care 
benefits, or death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits are entirely dependent on the sum 
of contributions and investment returns earned by each participant’s choice of investment options. 

Retirement Plan Funding—The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and 
employer contributions to retirement systems. The 2004 employee contribution rates for state employers 
are 8.5% of covered payroll for OPERS, 10.1% of covered payroll for law enforcement employees and 
10.0% of covered payroll for STRS. The 2004 employer contribution rates for state employers is 13.31% 
of covered payroll for OPERS, 16.7% of covered payroll for law enforcement, and 14.0% of covered 
payroll for STRS. The employee and employer rates are the same for ARP employees as the retirement 
system under which they would otherwise be. However, for those who would otherwise be covered by 
STRS, 3.5% of the employer contribution goes to the STRS retirement system. The University’s 
contributions each year are equal to its required contributions. 

University contributions for the current and two preceding years are summarized as follows: 

STRS OPERS ARP

2004 10,474,000$ 12,009,000$ 6,053,000$
2003 10,376,000 12,441,000 5,618,000 
2002 10,228,000 12,183,000 4,908,000 

Employer contributions

 

Other Post-Employment Benefits—In addition to the pension benefits described above, Ohio Law 
provides that the University fund postretirement health care benefits to retirees and their dependents 
through employer contributions to the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (“OPERS”) 
and the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (“STRS”). 

OPERS provides postretirement health care coverage to age and service retirees with ten or more years 
of qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor 
recipients is available. The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an 
Other Post-employment Benefit (“OPEB”) as described in GASB Statement No. 12. A portion of each 
employer’s contribution to OPERS is set aside for funding of postretirement health care. The Ohio 
Revised Code provides statutory authority for employer contributions. The OPERS law enforcement 
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program is separated into two divisions, law enforcement and public safety, with separate employee 
contribution rates and benefits. The 2003 employer contribution rate for state employers was 13.31% of 
covered payroll of which 5.00% was the portion used to fund health care for the year. For both the 
public safety and law enforcement divisions the 2003 employer rate was 16.70% and 5.00% was used to 
fund health care. The number of active contributing participants was 364,881. 

The actuarial value of the OPERS’ net assets available for OPEB at December 31, 2002 (the date of the 
system’s latest actuarial review) is $10.0 billion. The actuarially accrued liability and the unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability, based on the actuarial cost method used, is $18.7 billion and $8.7 billion, 
respectively.  

STRS provides access to health care coverage to retirees who participated in the Defined Benefit or 
Combined Plans, and their dependents. Coverage under the current program includes hospitalization, 
physicians’ fees, prescription drugs and partial reimbursement of monthly Medicare Part B premiums. 
All benefit recipients and sponsored dependents are eligible for health care coverage. Pursuant to the 
Ohio Revised Code (“ORC”), the State Teachers Retirement Board (the “board”) has discretionary 
authority over how much, if any, of the health care costs will be absorbed by STRS. Most benefit 
recipients pay a portion of the health care cost in the form of a monthly premium. 

The ORC grants authority to STRS to provide health care coverage to benefit recipients, spouses and 
dependents. By Ohio law the cost of the coverage paid from STRS funds shall be included in the 
employer contribution rate, currently 14% of covered payroll. 

The Retirement Board allocates employer contributions to the Health Care Stabilization Fund from 
which health care benefits are paid. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the Board allocated 
employer contributions equal to 1.0% of covered payroll to the Health Care Stabilization Fund. For the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, 4.5% of covered payroll was allocated to the fund. The balance in the 
Health Care Stabilization Fund was approximately $2.8 billion on June 30, 2003, the date of the most 
recent information available from STRS. 

For the year ended June 30, 2003, the date of the most recent information available from STRS, net 
health care costs paid by STRS were $352,301,000. There were 108,294 eligible benefit recipients. 

12. EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PLAN (“ERIP”) 

In fiscal year 2003 the University Board of Trustees approved an Early Retirement Incentive Plan 
(“ERIP”) buyout for eligible employees in the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (“OPERS”). 
An ERIP allows the University to purchase additional service credit, in this case two years, which 
enables eligible employees to retire early or to retire with a larger retirement benefit than they may have 
otherwise. The buyout period began on May 1, 2003. The period remained open until June 30, 2004. A 
$10,000 incentive was offered to employees who signed up for the buyout by June 30, 2003 and who 
would retire by September 1, 2003. Eligible employees were those eligible to retire with 5 years of 
service at age 60, 25 years of service at age 55 or 30 years of service at any age; who became eligible to 
retire due to the incentive plan; who became eligible to retire during the open period; or who became 
eligible due to purchasing additional service credit, i.e., exempt, refunded, military or other eligible time.  

As of June 30, 2004, 192 employees have signed up for the ERIP for a total cost estimate of $9.5 million 
that includes sick and vacation payouts in accordance with standard policy, the $10,000 incentive bonus 
for the 131 employees who left by September 1, 2003 and the OPERS payment calculated and billed by 
OPERS.  



- 32 - 

13. RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTINGENCIES 

Legal—During the normal course of operations, the University has become a defendant in various legal 
and administrative actions. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, 
Accounting for Contingencies, liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the 
amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. However, in the opinion of in-house legal counsel and 
University management, the disposition of all pending litigation would not have a material adverse 
effect on the University’s financial position. 

Self-insurance—The University provides medical and dental coverage for its employees on a self-
insurance basis. Expenses for claims are recorded on an accrual basis based on the date claims are 
incurred. The University applies GASB Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk 
Financing and Related Insurance Issues. 

A summary of changes in the self-insurance claims liability for each of the periods in the three-year 
period ending June 30, 2004 is as follows: 

2004 2003 2002

Accrued claims liability at beginning of year 3,571,000$   4,211,000$   6,150,000$   
Incurred claims—net of favorable settlements 27,932,000  27,780,000  20,450,000   
Claims paid (28,003,000)   (28,420,000)  (22,389,000)  

Accrued claims liability at end of year 3,500,000$   3,571,000$   4,211,000$    

Liability for claims is accrued based on estimates of the claims liabilities made by the University’s third party 
actuary. These estimates are based on past experience and current claims outstanding. Actual claims 
experience may differ from the estimate.  

Commercial Insurance Coverage—The University has the following commercial insurance policies. 

Type Deductible Coverage

Property 100,000$ 1,336,438,247$                 
Excess 100,000 60,000,000                      
Non-owned aviation -     25,000,000                      
Aircraft and airport 50,000   5,000,000 to 50,000,000
Primary umbrella 100,000 4,000,000                        
Crime 100,000 2,000,000                        
General 100,000 1,000,000                        
Educators legal 100,000 1,000,000                        
Automobile 100,000 1,000,000                        
Foreign -     1,000,000                         

Workers’ Compensation Coverage—The University participates in a plan that pays workers’ 
compensation benefits to beneficiaries who have been injured on the job. The Ohio Bureau of Workers’ 
Compensation calculates the estimated amount of cash needed in the subsequent fiscal year to pay the 
claims for these workers and sets rates to collect this estimated amount from participating state agencies 
and universities in the subsequent year.  
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14. CAPITAL PROJECT COMMITMENTS 

At June 30, 2004 the University is committed to future capital expenditures as follows: 

Contractual commitment 40,053,057$
Estimated completion costs of projects 24,335,197  

64,388,254$

These projects will be funded by:
  State appropriations 14,551,125$
  University funds 45,928,285  
  Gifts, federal grants and other 3,908,844    

64,388,254$  

15. OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 

Bureau of Workers’ Compensation Liability—The Bureau of Workers’ Compensation Liability is 
summarized as follows for the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively: 

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion

For the year ended:
  June 30, 2003 7,049,597$ -     $  (7,049,597)$ -     $   -     $   

Refundable Advances for Federal Student Loans—Refundable advances for federal student loans are 
summarized as follows for the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively: 

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion

For the year ended:
  June 30, 2004 7,174,958$  606,820$ -     $  7,781,778$  -     $  

  June 30, 2003 6,707,002$  467,956$ -     $  7,174,958$  -     $   

16. DONOR RESTRICTED ENDOWMENTS 

Under the standard established by Section 1715.56 of the Ohio Revised Code, an institution may 
appropriate so much as is prudent of the realized and unrealized net appreciation of the fair value of the 
assets of the endowment fund over the historic dollar value of the fund for the uses and purposes for 
which an endowment fund is established. The University’s endowment spending policy is based on the 
concept of total return and the spending rate for any particular year is to be 5%, phased in over a two 
year period as follows:  5.7% in fiscal year 2004 and 5.4% in fiscal year 2005. However, if the total 
return rate as of the date on which a spending rate is determined exceeds 5% plus the inflation adjuster, 
the Board may, but shall not be required to, increase the spending rate up to the amount such excess is 
greater than 5%, but in no event greater than 9%.  
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The amounts of net appreciation on investments of donor-restricted endowments that are available for 
authorization for expenditure by the Board are $13,765,000 and $12,209,000 for June 30, 2004 and 
2003, respectively. Those amounts are reported as restricted expendable net assets. 

17. EXTRAORDINARY ITEM—WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 

In fiscal year 2002, the State of Ohio required state universities to record a portion of the state’s 
workers’ compensation liability in its financial statements. In fiscal year 2003, the State of Ohio 
reversed this decision and as such the workers’ compensation liability and all related expenses were 
completely reversed in the 2003 financial statements. 

Under the State of Ohio’s Workers’ Compensation program, the University is part of a pool of state 
agencies and state universities that pays workers’ compensation premiums into the State Insurance Fund 
on a pay-as-you-go basis. In fiscal year 2002, as part of the State of Ohio’s implementation of GASB 
Statements No. 34 and No. 35, the State of Ohio required each state agency and state university to record 
a portion of the estimated actuarial liability for workers’ compensation in its financial statements. 
Accordingly, the University’s statement of net assets reflected an unfunded workers’ compensation 
liability of $7,049,597 at June 30, 2002. 

In 2003, the Auditor of State and the Office of Budget and Management agreed to re-examine this 
accounting treatment. Based on their review and consultation with representatives of the state-assisted 
universities, the agencies determined that the State of Ohio’s General Revenue Fund would recognize 
the entire liability for future workers’ compensation claims for the state, including the universities. 
Accordingly, the University’s 2003 statement of net assets reflected a reallocation of the $7,049,597 
unfunded workers’ compensation liability to the State of Ohio which reduced this liability to $0 at 
June 30, 2003. This entire reduction of expense was reported on the University’s 2003 statement of 
revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets as an Extraordinary Item. 

18. INTERNAL DESIGNATION OF FUNDS 

The University’s statements of net assets shows $61,945,957 and $50,652,596 for Unrestricted Net 
Assets as of June 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Internally those funds have been designated as 
follows: 

2004 2003

Quasi endowments 9,233,638$   10,048,611$ 
Auxiliary enterprises, including open purchase orders 13,025,210  7,619,753     
Open purchase orders—educational and general 2,801,902    1,881,553     
Departmental carryforward 36,885,207    31,102,679    

61,945,957$  50,652,596$   

19. THE OHIO UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION 

The Ohio University Foundation, a discretely presented component unit, was incorporated in Ohio in 
October 1945 to support the educational undertakings of Ohio University. The Foundation is authorized 
to solicit and receive gifts and contributions for the benefit of the University and to ensure that funds and 
property received are applied to the uses specified by the donor.  
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The Foundation’s wholly owned subsidiary, Inn-Ohio of Athens, Inc. (the “Inn”), owns and operates a 
144-room hotel and restaurant facility in Athens, Ohio known as The Ohio University Inn. The 
Foundation’s other wholly owned subsidiary, Housing for Ohio, Inc. (“Housing”), constructed and 
operates a 182-unit student-housing complex in Athens, Ohio. The Foundation also owns a majority 
interest in Diagnostic Hybrids, Inc., (“DHI”), which develops and manufactures tissue cell cultures, 
antibody kits, and biological reagents for use in medical laboratories. 

A separate financial report for the Foundation is available by contacting The Ohio University 
Foundation, HDL Center, Room 164, Athens, Ohio 45701 or (740) 593-1884. 

(a) Investments 

The Foundation has estimated the fair values of its financial instruments using available quoted market 
information and other valuation methodologies in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 107, Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments. Accordingly, the estimates 
presented are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Foundation could realize in a current 
market exchange. Determinations of fair value are based on subjective data and significant judgment 
relating to timing of payments and collections and the amounts to be realized. Different market 
assumptions and/or estimation methodologies might have a material effect on the estimated fair value 
amounts. 

The Foundation’s cost and market value of the investments in securities at June 30, 2004 and 2003 are as 
follows: 

Cost Market Cost Market

Common and preferred stock 84,182,536$  81,417,112$  84,093,483$  71,935,380$  
Short-term cash investments 2,533,332     2,533,332     4,167,328     4,167,328      
Bonds and debentures 22,126,609   21,865,913   47,194,481   47,713,041    
Other 37,147,472   36,894,431   5,924,390     5,260,075      

Total investments 145,989,949$ 142,710,788$ 141,379,682$ 129,075,824$ 

2004 2003

 

(b) Concentration of Credit Risk 

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Foundation to a concentration of credit risk, consist 
principally of contributions receivable, investments for the Foundation, and receivables related to 
operations of the Inn. Exposure to losses on contributions receivable is principally dependent on each 
donor’s financial condition. The Foundation monitors the exposure for credit losses and maintains 
allowances for anticipated losses. 

Investments are recorded at fair value. Investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest 
rate, market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is 
at least possible that changes in the value of investment securities will occur in the near term and that 
such changes could materially affect the Foundation’s consolidated statements of financial position and 
activities. 

(c) Gifts and Contributions 

Contributions are recorded at their fair value on the date of receipt. All contributions are considered to 
be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor. Contributions received that 
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are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for specific purposes are reported as 
temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support that increases those net asset categories. When a 
donor restriction expires (when a stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose of restriction is 
accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in 
the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 

Contributed property is recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If donors stipulate how long the 
assets must be used or restrict the use of such assets for a specific purpose, the contributions are 
recorded as restricted support. In the absence of such stipulations, contributions of property are recorded 
as unrestricted support. 

Contributions of charitable gift annuities are reduced by the actuarially determined liability resulting 
from acceptance of the gift. Contributions are held in charitable remainder trusts at the present value of 
their estimated future benefits to be received when the trust assets are distributed upon notification of the 
donor’s death. 

(d) Pledges Receivable 

Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at net 
realizable value. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are 
recorded at the present value of their estimated future cash flows. The discount on those amounts is 
computed using a risk-free interest rate. The discount rate utilized was 1.3% for fiscal year 2004 and 
0.84% for fiscal year 2003. Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenues. 
Unconditional promises to give, which are silent as to the due date, are presumed to be time restricted by 
the donor until received and are reported as temporarily restricted net assets. Conditional promises to 
give are not included as support until the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. 

Included in pledges receivable are the following unconditional promises to give at June 30, 2004 and 
2003: 

2004 2003

Unconditional promises to give before unamortized
  discount and allowance for uncollectibles 18,921,209$ 14,063,575$

                 
Less allowance for uncollectibles 482,080       796,240       

                                   
           Subtotal 18,439,129 13,267,335  

                                   
Less unamortized discount 513,940        772,275        

                                   
Unconditional promises to give—net 17,925,189$ 12,495,060$  
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Temporarily Permanently Temporarily Permanently
Restricted Restricted Restricted Restricted

Amounts due in:
  Less than one year 5,345,349$  3,354,542$ 3,128,660$ 1,732,736$
  One to five years 5,320,684   3,796,531 5,215,941 2,144,811 
  More than five years 94,462        13,621      238,702     34,210       

Total 10,760,495$ 7,164,694$ 8,583,303$ 3,911,757$

2004 2003

 

(e) Intentions 

The Foundation receives communications from donors indicating that the Foundation has been included 
in the donor’s will or life insurance policy as beneficiary, representing intentions to give rather than 
promises to give. Such communications are not unconditional promises to give because the donors retain 
the ability to modify their wills and insurance policies during their lifetimes. The total realizable value of 
these intended gifts has not been established, nor have the intended gifts been recognized as an asset or 
contribution revenue. Such gifts are recorded when the Foundation is notified of the donor’s death, the 
will is declared valid by a probate court, and the proceeds are measurable. 

(f) Split-Interest Agreements 

Charitable Gift Annuities—Under charitable gift annuity agreements, all assets are held by the 
Foundation. Therefore, the Foundation has recorded the donated assets at fair value and the liabilities to 
the donor or his/her beneficiaries discounted to the present value of the estimated future payments to be 
distributed by the Foundation to such individuals at a rate established at the beginning of the agreement. 
The amount of the contribution is the difference between the asset and liability and is recorded as 
contribution revenue. The discount rate applied to gift annuities held at June 30, 2004 and 2003 ranged 
from 3.6% to 9.8%. 

Charitable Remainder Trust—Under charitable remainder trust agreements, the Foundation serves as 
the remainderman, whereby the Foundation will receive the net assets of the trust upon death of the 
donor’s beneficiary. During the life of the trust, the donor, or the donor-designated beneficiary, will 
receive regular payments as established by the trust. 

In instances where the donor has not specifically reserved the right to change the remainderman, and all 
assets of charitable remainder trusts are maintained by a third-party trustee in an irrevocable trust for the 
benefit of the Foundation, the Foundation will recognize, as contribution revenue and as a receivable, 
the present value of the estimated future benefits to be received when the trust assets are distributed. The 
trustee disburses income earned on the assets of the charitable remainder trusts to the donor or donor-
designated beneficiaries. 

In instances where the donor has not specifically reserved the right to change the remainderman, and the 
Foundation serves as the trustee, the Foundation will recognize the fair market value of the assets of the 
trust, as well as a liability for the net present value of future payments to be distributed by the 
Foundation to the donor or his/her designated beneficiaries. The amount of the contribution is the 
difference between the asset and liability at the inception of the trust. The present value of the future 
payments to the donor-designated beneficiary is determined using a discount rate established at the 
beginning of the trust. At June 30, 2004 and 2003, the discount rate applied to the charitable remainder 
trusts was 1.3% and 6%, respectively. 



- 38 - 

Certain charitable remainder trust transactions are not reported on the consolidated statement of financial 
position or the consolidated statement of activities, as in these cases the remainderman can be changed 
by the donor prior to his/her death. 

Adjustments to the receivable to reflect amortization of the discount, revaluation of the present value of 
the estimated future payments to the donor-designated beneficiaries, and changes in actuarial 
assumptions during the term of the trust will be recognized as changes in the value of split-interest 
agreements. Upon the death of the donor-designated beneficiaries, the receivable is closed, the assets 
received from the trust are recognized at fair value, and any difference is reported as a change in the 
value of split-interest agreements. 

Revocable Trusts—Under revocable trust agreements, the Foundation serves as the remainderman, 
whereby the Foundation will receive the net assets of the trust upon death of the donor’s beneficiary. All 
assets of the trusts may be maintained by a third-party trustee for the benefit of the Foundation, or by the 
Foundation if named as a trustee. The trustee disburses income earned on the assets of trusts to the donor 
or donor-designated beneficiaries. Under revocable trust agreements, the donor maintains the ability to 
legally dissolve the trusts and may or may not reserve the right to change the remainderman. For these 
reasons, the Foundation does not report revocable trust transactions on the consolidated statement of 
financial position or the consolidated statement of activities if the trust is held by a third-party trustee. 

(g) Income Taxes 

The Internal Revenue Service has determined that The Ohio University Foundation is an exempt 
organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, except for taxes on unrelated 
income. Unrelated income taxes totaled $1,074,305 in 2004 and $880,000 in 2003. 

(h) Net Assets 

Foundation Unrestricted Net Assets—The unrestricted net assets consist of operating funds available 
for any purpose authorized by the board of trustees. The amount necessary to restore the fair value of 
assets of donor-related endowment accounts to the required principal levels has been funded from 
unrestricted net assets. The cumulative affect of these amounts were $5,355,042 and $7,201,046 at 
June 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. 

Foundation Temporarily Restricted Net Assets—Temporarily restricted net assets consist of funds that 
are restricted for a specific use or time determined by the donor.  
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Temporarily restricted net assets as of June 30, 2004 and 2003 are available for the following purposes: 

2004 2003

Alumni relations 950,657$     1,046,320$  
Institutional support 5,975,053   6,309,280    
Instruction and departmental support 30,901,314 27,239,282  
Academic services support 10,127,735 9,716,080    
Intercollegiate athletics support 742,156      569,546       
Student services 1,367,227   875,159       
Scholarships and fellowships 31,714,556 28,939,445  
Public services 313,279      416,339       
Research 1,034,220   1,147,302    
Fund-raising and development 1,375,919   1,442,237    
Other 149,155        372,920        

                  
84,651,271$ 78,073,910$  

Foundation Permanently Restricted Net Assets—Permanently restricted net assets consist of funds 
arising from a gift or bequest in which the donor has stipulated, as a condition of the gift, that the 
principal be maintained in perpetuity and only the investment income from investment of the funds be 
expended. Certain donor endowments also specify that a portion of the earnings from the investment be 
reinvested as principal, or that all income earned over a period of time be reinvested. Amounts are also 
transferred for specific uses as authorized from time to time by the donor. 

Permanently restricted net assets as of June 30, 2004 and 2003 are available for the following purposes: 

2004 2003

Alumni relations 1,159,005$  603,760$     
Institutional support 2,163,136   2,361,848    
Instruction and departmental support 45,185,308 36,012,303  
Academic services support 3,491,537   3,201,640    
Intercollegiate athletics support 85,955         39,494         
Student services 1,964,259   2,186,425    
Scholarships and fellowships 41,006,518 37,294,237  
Public services 297,523      406,069       
Research 874,718      768,138       
Fund-raising and development 124,204      87,868         
Other 618,261      9,266           

                  
96,970,424$ 82,971,048$  

(i) Inn-Ohio Of Athens, Inc.  

The Ohio University Inn was purchased by the Foundation on August 30, 1986. The primary purpose for 
which the Foundation invested in the Inn was to provide affordable and convenient housing, dining, and 
conference facilities for the University employees, alumni, and guests. As a significant portion of the 
Inn’s revenues is derived from these customers, the Foundation is committed to financially supporting 
the Inn. 
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The Inn’s business is subject to all of the risks inherent in the lodging industry. These risks include, 
among other factors, varying levels of demand for rooms and related services, adverse effects of general 
and local economic and market conditions, changes in governmental regulations that influence wages or 
prices, changes in interest rates, the availability of credit and changes in real estate taxes and other 
operating expenses, and the recurring need for renovation, refurbishment, and improvements. 

Effective November 30, 1996, a management agreement (the “Management Agreement”) was entered 
into with Winegardner & Hammons, Inc, (the “Manager”). The Management Agreement was amended 
during fiscal year 2001 to automatically renew annually unless notified in writing of renewal 60 days 
prior to the end of the fiscal year. The Manager’s compensation is a base fee plus 15% of the hotel’s net 
available operating profit as defined in the Management Agreement. 

In fiscal year 2004 and 2003, base management fees incurred by the Inn with respect to the Manager 
were $100,000 and $100,000 and incentive fees were $100,060 and $114,640, respectively. 

As of June 30, 2004 and 2003, the Inn has net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards of $153,000 and 
$365,000, respectively, for Federal income tax purposes. The NOL carryforwards expire in years 2004 
through 2012. The Inn has reflected deferred income taxes at a 40% tax rate, which represents a blended 
statutory Federal and state income tax rate. As of June 30, 2004 and 2003, the Inn has recorded a 
valuation allowance of approximately $163,500 and $279,000, respectively, due to the uncertainty of the 
future realizability of its remaining net deferred tax asset carryforwards, in accordance with the 
provisions of SFAS No. 109. 

Debt Obligations—Long-term debt of the Inn as of June 30, 2004 and 2003 consists of the following: 

2004 2003

1996 Serial Project Bonds:
  5.75% due November 1, 2003 -     $          115,000$   
  5.85% due November 1, 2004 120,000     120,000    
  5.95% due November 1, 2005 130,000     130,000    
  6.05% due November 1, 2006 140,000     140,000    

                
1996 Term Project Bonds—                 
  6.25%, at 97.61%, due November 1, 2011 830,000     830,000    

1,220,000 1,335,000 

Less:  Unamortized discount on Series 1996 Bonds 9,670         10,989      

Total 1,210,330$ 1,324,011$  

The 1996 Serial and Term Project Bonds (the “Bonds”) are secured by a mortgage on the Inn and a 
security agreement granted by the Inn. These Bonds are also guaranteed by the Foundation from 
unrestricted money and investments. 

The 1996 Term Project Bonds require the Inn to make monthly payments to a trustee. These payments 
accumulate in the bond fund to pay principal and interest on the Bonds. Principal payments are due 
annually on November 1; interest payments are due semiannually each May 1 and November 1 and are 
payable from the bond fund. The 1996 Serial Project Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity, 
including mandatory sinking fund redemption. After November 1, 2006, the Inn has the option to prepay 



- 41 - 

the 1996 Bonds. The balance in the bond fund at June 30, 2004 and 2003 was $92,662 and $90,653, 
respectively. 

The 1996 Bonds maturing in November 2011 are subject to a mandatory sinking fund requirement to be 
deposited as set forth in the following schedule: 

Amount

November 1:
  2007 145,000$ 
  2008 155,000  
  2009 165,000  
  2010 175,000  
  2011 190,000  

Total 830,000$  

The fair value of the debt obligations at June 30, 2004 and 2003 approximated their carrying value. 

(j) Housing For Ohio, Inc. 

In November 1999, the Foundation established Housing for Ohio, Inc. (“Housing”), a limited liability 
company and 501(c)(3) corporation, with the purpose of acquiring, developing, constructing, and 
operating a 182-unit student-housing rental project which contains 580 beds. The property, known as 
University Courtyard Apartments (the “Project”), is located in Athens, Ohio on property owned by Ohio 
University and leased to Housing. The facility is managed and operated by a private entity. 

Debt—In September 2000, Housing offered $31,985,000 of variable-rate, tax-exempt bonds (the “2000 
Bonds”). The proceeds of the 2000 Bonds financed the construction, installation, and equipping of the 
Project. The 2000 Bonds will be fully matured at June 2032 and bear interest at an adjustable rate as 
determined weekly by the remarketing agent, based on their knowledge of prevailing market conditions, 
except that in no event will the interest rate exceed 12%. The average interest rate for the year ended 
June 30, 2004 and 2003 was 1.03% and 1.32%, respectively, and the actual interest rate at June 30, 2004 
and 2003 was 1.10% and 1.04%, respectively. 

As collateral, until all principal and interest on any of the 2000 Bonds has been paid, Housing has 
pledged, assigned, and granted a security interest to its right, title, and interest in gross revenues of 
University Courtyard and related assets. The Foundation has made no additional pledge of assets or 
revenues to the 2000 Bonds, which are nonrecourse to the Foundation. 
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Principal payments for the bonded debt for the years subsequent to June 30, 2004 are summarized as 
follows: 

Year Ending
June 30 Principal

2005 340,000$     
2006 445,000       
2007 530,000       
2008 575,000       
2009 635,000       
Thereafter 28,865,000  

Total 31,390,000$  

Debt issuance costs are included in property on the balance sheet and are amortized over the term of the 
bonds. Amortization during the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003 was $34,965 and $17,675, 
respectively. 

Litigation—Housing, Ambling Companies, Inc., and Subsidiaries (“Ambling”), the developer and 
manager of Housing for Ohio, and various of its subcontractors were defendants along with Ohio 
University in a legal action initiated by the United Brotherhood of Carpenters and Joiners of America 
and joined in by the State of Ohio, Department of Commerce for the payment of back wages and 
penalties. During fiscal 2003, Housing and Ohio University were relieved as defendants in the litigation. 

Furthermore, during fiscal 2004, Housing was a cross-claim plaintiff against Ambling and the general 
contractor, for indemnification of any expenses related to the cost of the project and litigation expenses 
beyond the Developer Guaranteed Project Cost of $26,308,823. During fiscal 2003, Ambling notified 
Housing, requesting reimbursement by Housing for various additional costs totaling $2,400,000, 
incurred during the construction process. Subsequent to June 30, 2003, Ambling filed a formal legal 
action for the claim in the amount of $2,600,000. While the $2,600,000 claim was disputed by Housing, 
the original $2,400,000 claim that was identified prior to June 30, 2003 was included in the building cost 
and related liabilities recorded on Housing’s statement of financial position. Also, subsequent to 
June 30, 2003, Ambling filed an additional lawsuit against Housing requesting reimbursement from 
Housing for $631,000 related to development fees, of which $300,000 was held in escrow with the bond 
trustee. Housing filed a counter claim against the general contractor for $1,000,000 for breach of 
contract and indemnity. The Ambling claims and the indemnity claims against Ambling and the general 
contractor were resolved by mediation. The parties came to a settlement agreement on May 19, 2004, in 
which Housing would pay Ambling a total sum of $2,000,000. The settlement agreement required an 
initial payment of $1,300,000 to Ambling in cash no later than thirty days after the issuance of orders of 
the court, and a cognovit promissory note for $700,000 payable in ten annual installments of $70,000 
commencing on June 1, 2005. The entire note balance becomes due and payable if Ambling’s current 
management agreement is terminated or if certain other events occur. 

In the opinion of management, the litigation had no material adverse impact on the Foundation’s 
consolidated financial statements. 

(k) Diagnostic Hybrids, inc. (“DHI”)  

DHI, an Ohio corporation located in Athens, Ohio, develops and manufactures genetically engineered 
and non-engineered tissue cell cultures, monoclonal antibody kits, and biological reagents for use by 
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laboratory technicians in medical laboratories. These products are used to diagnose viral diseases and 
endocrine disorders. 

The Foundation owns 802,720 shares of Class A Common Stock and 384,622 shares of Convertible 
Preferred Stock, which represent an approximate 71% ownership of DHI. 

The Preferred Shares are convertible into common shares based on an initial conversion price of $6.50 
per common share, adjusted for shares and options issued at prices below $6.50 per share. The Preferred 
Shares also convert automatically on a qualified initial public offering and have voting rights equal to 
common shares and a liquidation preference over common shares. In addition, the Foundation has 
conversion rights that give the Foundation the right to convert all of the Preferred Shares to an amount 
of common shares, as defined in the Share Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) between the 
Foundation and DHI. These conversion rights expire on February 15, 2006. Through February 15, 2006, 
in accordance with the Agreement, in the event that all potential common shares of DHI are outstanding, 
as defined, the Foundation’s minimum ownership percentage in DHI would be 50.1%. 

DHI accounts for its employee and director stock-based compensation plans in accordance with APB 
Opinion No. 25. DHI has elected not to adopt the cost recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, 
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. DHI follows only the disclosure provisions of SFAS 
No. 123, as permitted by the Statement. In accordance with SFAS No. 123, the fair value of each option 
grant is estimated on the date of each grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. If 
compensation expense had been determined using the estimated fair value of options under SFAS 
No. 123, the pro forma effects would have been an increase of $94,000 and $285,000 for the 12-month 
period ended June 30, 2004 and 2003 respectively. DHI recorded deferred compensation expense of  
$799,947 and $731,815 for the 12-month periods ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. 

DHI accounts for income taxes under the liability method in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting 
for Income Taxes. Deferred income taxes are provided for the expected tax consequences of differences 
between the financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities, which is primarily comprised of 
accounting for stock options and accounts receivable. 
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DHI has the following debt obligations at June 30, 2004 and 2003: 

2004 2003

State of Ohio Pioneer Loan—
  4% installment note, payable monthly through 2008,
    collateralized by machinery and equipment 33,178$      53,687$     

                
Buckeye Hills—Hocking Valley development loan—
  4% installment note payable monthly through 2009,
    collateralized by machinery and equipment 62,856       89,508      

Note payable to BioWhittaker—
  Payments begin March 2003 with 12% interest, payable 
    in 36 monthly installments, unsecured 941,776     1,084,183 

Installment note payable to Neogenex—                 
  5% installment loan, payable in monthly installments                 
    through August 2003, unsecured                 28,718      

                
Other notes payable to Neogenex—                 
  Due in four installments beginning September 2003, unsecured                 133,440    

Total 1,037,810$ 1,389,536$  

The aggregate maturities and scheduled payments of debt for each of the next five years are as follows: 

Twelve Months
Ending June 30

2005 483,094$   
2006 464,756    
2007 45,125      
2008 26,169      
2009 and thereafter 18,666      

Total debt 1,037,810$  

(l) Subsequent Event 

On August 5, 2004, DHI amended its Articles of Incorporation and issued 1,030,342 newly created 
Class A Participating Convertible Preferred Shares (the “Class A Preferred Shares”) to Summit Partners 
for $10,000,000 cash.  In connection with and as a condition to consummating the issuance of the Class 
A Preferred Shares, the Foundation converted its outstanding preferred shares into common stock 
immediately prior to the issuance of the new shares.  The Foundation received an additional 59,022 
common shares upon conversion in accordance with the articles of incorporation in effect at that time. 
DHI used $3,500,000 of the proceeds to immediately pay a special dividend to current outstanding 
shareholders of record, as of August 4, 2004, on a pro rata basis.  The Foundation’s share of the 
dividend was $2,482,288.  These funds have been allocated to unrestricted and endowment accounts 
based on the sources of the funds used to purchase the shares.   
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DHI’s Class A Preferred Shares accrue dividends at a rate of 5.2% per annum.  Upon a liquidation or sale 
of the Company, the holders of the Class A Preferred Shares will be entitled to receive an amount in cash 
equal to the redeemable preference in the amount of $3,500,000 plus accrued and unpaid dividends before 
any distribution or payments to common shareholders.  In no event, shall the Class A Preferred Shares be 
entitled to be paid less than the original investment plus accrued and unpaid dividends. 

20.  THE OHIO UNIVERSITY OSTEOPATHIC MEDICAL CENTER, INC. 

The Ohio University Osteopathic Medical Center, Inc. (“MCI”), a discretely presented component unit 
of Ohio University is a professional association formed under Chapter 1785 of the Ohio Revised Code 
for the purpose of organizing licensed physicians and surgeons, who are faculty members of the Ohio 
University College of Osteopathic Medicine, into a multi-specialty faculty group practice. The sole 
purpose for which this professional association is formed is to render medical care, consultation, 
diagnosis and treatment through physicians and surgeons licensed to practice medicine in the State of 
Ohio. MCI ceased to exist as an entity effective July 1, 2003.  The accompanying financial statements 
present the last five months of the entity from February 1, 2003 through June 30, 2003.  The successor 
organization, University Medical Associates has been evaluated and was determined to not meet the 
tests of GASB Statement No. 39 for component unit treatment.  

* * * * * *  
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
(A Component Unit of the State of Ohio)

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Federal Agency / Pass-Through Grantor CFDA No. Federal / Pass-Through Expenditures
Grant Number

STUDENT AID CLUSTER
  DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
    Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant 84.007 P007A033342 1,189,695$        
    Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants (PR YR 84.007 P007A023342 (741)                  
    College Workstudy Program 84.033 P033A033342 1,003,497         
    College Workstudy Program (JLD 84.033 P033A033342 49,415              
    Perkins (Capital Contribution 84.038 P038A033342 144,621            
    Federal Direct Student Loan 84.268 N/A 101,983,848     
    Pell Grant Program 84.063 P063P030345 16,914,665       
    Pell Grant Program (PR YR 84.063 P063P020345 (37,460)             

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 121,247,540     

  DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES
    Primary Care Loan 93.342 N/A 462,199            
    Scholarships for Health Professions Students from Disadvantaged Backgroun 93.925 6084209 287,282            

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 749,481            

TOTAL STUDENT FINANCIAL AID CLUSTER 121,997,021     

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CLUSTER
  APPALACHIAN REGIONAL COMMISSION
    Direct Programs
      Appalachian Area Developmen 23.002 CO-14649 27,006              

  TOTAL APPALACHIAN REGIONAL COMMISSION 27,006              

  DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
    Direct Programs
      Grants for Agricultural Research Competitive Research Gran 10.206 2002-35304-12333 16,409              

      Forestry Research 10.652 01-CA-11242343-09301-CA-11242343-02 2,946                
      Forestry Research 10.652 00-CA-11242343-024/01-004/03-030/04-02 40,399              
      Forestry Research 10.652 01-CA-11242342-030/02-040 5,227                
      Forestry Research 10.652 02-CA-11242343-089 3,137                
      Forestry Research 10.652 03-CA-11242343-008 7,296                
      Forestry Research 10.652 03-CA-11242343-034/04-11 10,922              
      Forestry Research 10.652 03-CA-11242343-072 177                   
      Forestry Research 10.652 03-CA-11242343-104 10,891              
      Forestry Research 10.652 04-CA-11242343-007 12,073              
      Forestry Research 10.652 04-CA-11242343-035 115                   
      Forestry Research 10.652 04-CA-11242343-011 312                   
      Forestry Research 10.652 02-CA-12242343-056 82                     
      Forestry Research 10.652 03-CA-11242343-045 8,878                
      Forestry Research 10.652 03-CR-11111125-044 24,999              

127,454            

           Subtotal Direct Program 143,863            

    Pass-Through Programs From
      Ohio State University Research Foundatio 10.200 RF00943874 131,350            
      Rural Action Inc 10.200 N/A 219                   
      University of Nebraska Lincoln 10.200 25-6205-0034-030 33,606              

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 165,175            

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 309,038            

  DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
    Direct Programs
      National Institute of Standards & Technolog
      Measurement and Engineering Research and Standard 11.609 70NANB2H0130 9,805                
      Measurement and Engineering Research and Standard 11.609 Award No. 60NANB3D1122 17,433              

           Subtotal Direct Program 27,238              

(Continued)
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
(A Component Unit of the State of Ohio)

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Federal Agency / Pass-Through Grantor CFDA No. Federal / Pass-Through Expenditures
Grant Number

    Pass-Through Programs From
      Ohio Aerospace Institute 11.612 FIPER R-300-100154-40104 204,960$           

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 204,960            

  DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE TOTAL 232,198            

  DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE
    Direct Programs
      AIR FORCE
        Basic, Applied, and Advanced Research in Science and Engineerin 12.630 F4-9620-03-1-0285 121,480            

        Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program 12.800 F49620-01-1-0284 48,145              
        Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program 12.800 F49620-03-1-0004 151,454            
        Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program 12.800 F29601-99-C-0176 1,504                
        Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program 12.800 F29601-00-C-0212 53,236              
        Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program 12.800 N/A 394                   
        Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program 12.800 F30602-03-M-R003 3,941                

258,674            

      U.S. ARMY
        U S Army Corp of Engineers - Signal Processin 12.XXX DAAD13-00-C-0038 24,970              
        U S Army Corp of Engineers - Long Term Diamondback Te 12.XXX DACW31-03-P-0291 13,875              
        U S Army Medical Research Acquisition- Dietary Energy Requiremen 12.XXX DAMD17-95-1-5053 189,313            

228,158            

        U S Army Robert Morris Acquisition Cente 12.000 DAAD05-02-C-0035 48,172              

      Military Medical Research and Developmen 12.420 DAMD17-99-1-9339 5,538                

      OFFICE OF THE CHIEF OF NAVAL RESEARCH
        Marine Corps Warfighting Laboratory - Madras or TTL 12.XXX M67854-04-M-9017 13,244              
        Space and Naval Warfare Systems Center - Hybrid Resource M 12.XXX N66001-02-C-8063 34,450              

47,694              

           Subtotal Direct Program 709,716            

    Pass-Through Programs From
      Anteon Naval Post Graduate Schoo 12.XXX GS09K99BHD0001 16,509              

      GEO Centers Inc 12.XXX PO 40675CM-GC-3173 and PO 42116RB 12,323              
      GEO Centers Inc 12.XXX DAAD13-03-D-0017 8,028                

20,351              

      Innovative Scientific Solution 12.XXX PO2003254 49,081              
      Innovative Scientific Solution 12.XXX F33615-03-D-2829 34,699              

83,780              

      Materials and Electrochemical Research Corporatio 12.XXX N/A 25,000              

      Nonohmics, Inc 12.XXX N00178-03-C-3144 35,000              
      Nonohmics, Inc 12.XXX N00164-03-C-6028 22,177              
      Nonohmics, Inc 12.XXX M67854-04-C-1009 7,496                

64,673              

      Raytheon Company 12.XXX NBCHC030123 9,020                
      Spectral Systems Inc 12.XXX 403604-OU-01 204,737            
      Systran Federal Corp 12.XXX F33615-99-C-5803 (13,918)             
      Thales ATM INC 12.XXX PO T93821 12,232              
      Universal Technology Corporatio 12.XXX F33615-03-D-5801 117,665            
      Washington University 12.XXX F33615-03-C-4111 257,475            
      Defense Advanced Research Projec 12.910 F33615-01-C-1834 68,912              

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 866,436            

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE 1,576,152         

(Continued)
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
(A Component Unit of the State of Ohio)

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Federal Agency / Pass-Through Grantor CFDA No. Federal / Pass-Through Expenditures
Grant Number

  DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
    Direct Programs
      Overseas Faculty Research Abroa 84.019 PO19A030057 26,253$             
    
           Subtotal Direct Program 26,253              
    
    Pass-Through Programs From
      Community Action Commission of Belmont Count 84.213 N/A 5,747                
      Coshocton City Schoo 84.213 N/A 9,145                
      Harvard University 84.XXX P017A030111 20,122              
      Lancaster Even Star 84.213 N/A 3,881                
      Logan Hocking School 84.338 N/A 291                   
      University of Cincinnat 84.323 OSP# 03154 PATS#23758 14,000              
      University of Cincinnat 84.323 OSP# 04150 PATS#24121 13,368              
      Westate Inc 84.XXX ED-99-CO-0109 3,752                
    
           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 70,306              
    
  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 96,559              

  DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
    Direct Programs
      Intermediate Energy Nuclear Physic 81.XXX DE-FG02-93ER40756 219,358            
      Semiconductor Quantum System 81.XXX DE-FG02-87ER45334 21,476              
      Evaluation of Fine Particulate Matte 81.XXX DE-FC26-03NT41723 415,681            
      Planar Solid Oxide Fuel Cell 81.XXX DEOFG36-03GO13059 887,536            
      Studies in Low Energy Nuclea 81.XXX DE-FG52-03NA00074 459,465            

2,003,516         

      Office of Science Financial Assistance Program 81.049 DE-FG02-88ER40387 194,531            
      Office of Science Financial Assistance Program 81.049 DE-FG02-02ER46012 133,143            

327,674            

      Fossil Energy Research and Developmen 81.089 DE-FC26-00NT40932 228,653            

      University Reactor Infrastructure and Education Suppo 81.114 DE-FG02-02ER41218 74,253              

           Subtotal Direct Program 2,634,096         

    Pass-Through Programs From
      Advanced Technology System 81.XXX DE-FC26-02NT41476 184,227            
      Brookhaven National Laborator 81.XXX DE-AC02-98CH10886 8,045                
      Carnegie Mellon University 81.XXX DE-FC26-OINT41017 1070008114485 9,580                
      Croll Reynolds Clean Ai 81.XXX N/A 87,077              
      Idaho National Engineering and Environmental La 81.XXX N/A (268)                  
      INEEL Academic Center for Excellenc 81.XXX N/A 2,000                
      Lawrence Livermore National Laborator 81.XXX W-7405-ENG-48 30,398              
      Lawrence Livermore National Laborator 81.XXX N/A 22,000              
      Los Alamos National Laborator 81.XXX W-7405-ENG-36 15,000              
      Massachusetts Institute of Technolog 81.XXX PO 5510024998 44,750              
      Ohio Department of Developmen 81.XXX 03-10 6,000                
      University of Michigan 81.049 F005182, Agreement No. 6455828 64,581              
      University of Nevada Reno 81.118 DE-FC26-01NT41164 48,742              

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 522,132            

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 3,156,228         

  DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES
    Direct Programs
      National Institute of Health
      Research Related to Deafness and Communication Disorde 93.173 5 K23 DC00153 7,771                
      Research Related to Deafness and Communication Disorde 93.173 5 R01 DC005063 451,100            
      Research Related to Deafness and Communication Disorde 93.173 1 R21 DC05468 51,244              

510,115            

(Continued)
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
(A Component Unit of the State of Ohio)

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Federal Agency / Pass-Through Grantor CFDA No. Federal / Pass-Through Expenditures
Grant Number

      Mental Health Research Grant 93.242 5 R01 MH057832 248,061$           

      Alcohol Research Program 93.273 5 R01 AA14294-02 196,427            

      Drug Abuse Research Program 93.279 5 R01 DA013939 310,527            

      Adhesion To Endothelium 93.390 2 R15 GM057640-03A1 18,354              

      Cancer Cause and Prevention Researc 93.393 7 R01 CA086928-04 186,209            

      Cancer Treatment Research 93.395 1 R15 CA098036-01A1 15,797              

      Cytoplasmic Dynein Light Chai 93.821 1 R15 GM60969 66,142              
      RNA Antiterminator 93.821 5 R01 GM61048-03 227,714            

293,856            

      Heart and Vascular Diseases Researc 93.837 5 R01 HL64794 261,984            

      Kidney Diseases, Urology and Hematology Researc 93.849 1 R15 DK61952 59,844              

      Extramural Research Programs in the Neurosciences and Neurological Disorde 93.853 5 R01 NS32374 431,520            
      Extramural Research Programs in the Neurosciences and Neurological Disorde 93.853 2 R01 NS022979-19A2 78,838              
      Extramural Research Programs in the Neurosciences and Neurological Disorde 93.853 1 K01 NS046582-01 68,439              

578,797            

      Microbiology and Infectious Diseases Researc 93.856 2 R15 AI47165 2,049                

      Biomedical Research and Research Trainin 93.859 5 R01 GM48858 206,975            
      Biomedical Research and Research Trainin 93.859 5 R01 GM050690 232,348            

439,323            

      Aging Research 93.866 5 R21AG20334 217,959            
      Aging Research 93.866 1 R15 AG20536 65,148              

283,107            

      Medical Library Assistanc 93.879 5 G13 LM007670 68,223              

           Subtotal Direct Program 3,472,673         

    Pass-Through Programs From
      Athens County Family and Children First Counc 93.XXX N/A 13,638              
      Baylor College of Medicine 93.173 5 R01 DC002290 26,244              
      Columbia University 93.838 HL55397 94,890              
      Duke University 93.XXX Fund Code 303-1609 1,250                
      Group Health Cooperative of Pugent Soun 93.242 5 R21 MH065858-03 24,650              
      Population Communications Internationa 93.XXX H75/CCH222210-01 13,949              
      Southern Illinois University 93.866 RO1 AG19899-02 39,468              
      University of California Davi 93.856 99RA2742-1 4,619                
      University of Illinois at Chicag 93.396 1 R01-CA099904-01 13,052              
      University of Iowa 93.847 PO 4000089762 74,493              
      University of Iowa 93.847 P.O. 4000091925 55,938              
      University of North Carolina at Charlott 93.838 R01 HL068706-01A2 25,445              
      University of Texas M D Anderson Cancer Cente 93.395 5 R01 CA029026 87,181              
      Washington Co Mental Health and Recovery Boar 93.XXX N/A 1,539                

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 476,356            

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 3,949,029         

  DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
    Direct Programs
      FEMA-Advanced Communication Technolog 97.XXX EMV-2002-SA-0080 12,257              

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 12,257              

(Continued)

- 5 -



OHIO UNIVERSITY
(A Component Unit of the State of Ohio)

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Federal Agency / Pass-Through Grantor CFDA No. Federal / Pass-Through Expenditures
Grant Number

  DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
    Direct Programs
      National Institute of Justice Research, Evaluation, and Development Project Gran 16.560 2002-MU-MU-K002 52,760$             
      National Institute of Justice Research, Evaluation, and Development Project Gran 16.560 2002-WG-BX-0004 34,582              
      National Institute of Justice Research, Evaluation, and Development Project Gran 16.560 2002-IJ-CX-K007 139,700            

227,042            

      Criminal Justice Research and Development Graduate Research Fellowshi 16.562 2003-IJ-CX-1027 75,944              

           Subtotal Direct Program 302,986            

    Pass-Through Programs From
      Athens Hocking Vinton Counties TASC 16.585 N/A 4,703                
      Hocking County Juvenile Cour 16.XXX N/A 1,357                
      Jackson Police Departmen 16.710 99SBWX0016 (568)                  

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 5,492                

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 308,478            

  DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
    Direct Programs
      U.S. Geological Survey Research and Data Collectio 15.808 02CRGR0004 128,792            
      U.S. Geological Survey Research and Data Collectio 15.808 03HQGR0140 74,877              
      U.S. Geological Survey Research and Data Collectio 15.808 01CRAG0025 5,339                

209,008            

      US Fish and Wildlife Service 15.XXX FWS 3-161-1 215                   

      National Spatial Data Infrastructure Cooperative Agreements Progra 15.809 02HQAG0120 3,234                

           Subtotal Direct Program 212,457            

    Pass-Through Programs From
      Midwest Biodiversity Institute 15.XXX N/A 16,189              

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 16,189              

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 228,646            

  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
    Direct Programs
      U.S. Department of Transportation
        Develop Nationwide Differential Global Positioning System 20.XXX DTRS57-04-C-10026 11,319              
      Federal Aviation Administration
        Integrated Avionics Tech Dev 20.XXX 95-G-014 135,190            
        Local Area Augmentation System 20.XXX 98-G-002 1,744,363         
        DTFA02D97036 20.XXX DTFA-02-D-97036 5,741                
        DTFA0197C00078 20.XXX DTFA01-97-C-00078 (3,200)               
        Navigation Landing Analytical Mode 20.XXX DTFA01-01-C-00012 561,885            
        DTFA01-01-C-00071 20.XXX DTFA01-01-C-00071 2,168,170         
        Technical Support Serv Nav & Landin 20.XXX DTFAA-02-03-D-00394 39,485              
        Glide Slope Study 20.XXX DTFAAC-04-P-06688 9,105                

4,660,739         

      Aviation Research Grant 20.108 2001-G-016 47,991              

           Subtotal Direct Program 4,720,049         

    Pass-Through Programs From
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.XXX 14101(1) 17,585              
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 8490 491                   
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 9251 2,756                
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 9800 18,685              
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 9794 50,671              

(Continued)
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
(A Component Unit of the State of Ohio)

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Federal Agency / Pass-Through Grantor CFDA No. Federal / Pass-Through Expenditures
Grant Number

      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 9991 121,156$           
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 AC SPR-2(36) 88,060              
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 10209 172,562            
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 10210 5,741                
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 11241 31,545              
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 11251 30,925              
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 11252 32,423              
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 20119 A 47,384              
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 AC1SPR-2(37) 40,961              
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 20081 130,988            
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 11722C 403,108            
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 11910A 12,312              
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 11842 50,682              
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 20337 58,031              
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 E040(952) 555                   
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 ODOT 11633 16,930              

1,333,551         

      Talbert and Bright Inc 20.XXX 3306-0101 10,734              
      The National Academies 20.XXX DOT-6120-399 15,758              
      University of Akron 20.205 11374 679                   
      URS Corporation 20.XXX D100001119.01 631                   
      West Virginia University 20.205 N/A 3,212                

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 1,364,565         

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 6,084,614         

  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
    Direct Programs
      Nonpoint Source Implementation Grant 66.460 R-82817101-0 (1)                      

           Subtotal Direct Program (1)                      

    Pass-Through Programs From
      Center for Applied Bioassessment and Biocriteri 66.460 N/A 96,605              

      Ohio Environmental Protection Agenc 66.460 01(h)E-08 33,020              
      Ohio Environmental Protection Agenc 66.460 C997550003 758                   

33,778              

      Rural Action Inc 66.460 N/A 5,873                

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 136,256            

  TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 136,255            

  NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND SPACE ADMINISTRATION
    Direct Programs
      Ames Research Center
        Molecular Cloning 43.XXX NAG2-1608 186,407            

      George C Marshall Space Flight Cente
        Trajectory Linearization of Control Algorithm 43.XXX NNM04AB92P 20,203              
        Robust Integration Tech & Test Flight Suppor 43.XXX NNM04AA33P 4,998                
        Integrated Guidance N Contro 43.XXX NAS8-01105 200,563            

225,764            

      Glenn Research Center
        SATS Flight Demo of 3D Cockpit Displa 43.XXX NAG3-2612 32,066              
        Airborne Internet Alternate 43.XXX NAG3-2815 32,543              

64,609              

      Goddard Space Flight Cente
        Reexamination of Cooling Flow 43.XXX NAG5-11025 98,934              
        Physics of AGN Quasar 3C 27 43.XXX NAG5-13205 11,116              

(Continued)
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Federal Agency / Pass-Through Grantor CFDA No. Federal / Pass-Through Expenditures
Grant Number

        Hard Xray Blazar 3C 27 43.XXX NAG5-13684 1,289$               
        Coordinated Broadband Monito 43.XXX NNG04GC65G 65                     
        Mgt of Distributed Comp 43.XXX NAS5-00185 382                   

111,786            

      Langley Research Cente
        NASA Synthetic Vision 43.XXX NCC-1-351 (9) 170,378            
        Haptics Augmented Science Edu 43.XXX NAG1-01094 39,706              
        Synthetic Vision System 43.XXX N/A 94,358              

304,442            

           Subtotal Direct Program 893,008            

    Pass-Through Programs From
      Lockheed Martin 43.XXX GH3-216067 74,496              
      Morehouse College 43.XXX NAG5-13633 95,380              
      Ohio Aerospace Institute 43.XXX R-300-100275-40104 69,443              

      Smithsonian Astrophysical Observator 43.XXX GO1-2139X (2,248)               
      Smithsonian Astrophysical Observator 43.XXX AR2-3007X 36,114              
      Smithsonian Astrophysical Observator 43.XXX N/A 3,932                
      Smithsonian Astrophysical Observator 43.XXX GO2-3161X 16,237              
      Smithsonian Astrophysical Observator 43.XXX G03-4176B 16,021              
      Smithsonian Astrophysical Observator 43.XXX TM3-4005B 24,931              
      Smithsonian Astrophysical Observator 43.XXX AR3-4011X 40,902              
      Smithsonian Astrophysical Observator 43.XXX GO3-4165X 35,532              
      Smithsonian Astrophysical Observator 43.XXX NAS8-03060 453                   
      Smithsonian Astrophysical Observator 43.XXX NAS8-03060 831                   
      Smithsonian Astrophysical Observator 43.XXX NAS8-03060 4,172                

176,877            

      Space Telescope Science Institute 43.XXX HST-GO-08589.02-A 8,723                
      Space Telescope Science Institute 43.XXX HST-GO-09070-03-A 517                   
      Space Telescope Science Institute 43.XXX HST-GO-09143-02-A 8,868                
      Space Telescope Science Institute 43.XXX HST-GO-09783.03-A 1,538                
      Space Telescope Science Institute 43.XXX HST-GO-09859.01-A 8,055                

27,701              

      Virginia Satslab Inc 43.XXX N/A 90,488              

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 534,385            

  TOTAL NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND SPACE ADMINISTRATION 1,427,393         

  NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE HUMANITIES
    Direct Programs
      Poland Ethnic Cleansing 45.XXX FA-37916 40,000              
      Promotion of the Humanities Public Program 45.164 GP-50071-03 4,681                

  TOTAL NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE HUMANITIES 44,681              

  NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION
    Direct Programs
      Engineering Grants 47.041 ECS-0083412 41,087              
      Engineering Grants 47.041 ECS-0094668 2,183                
      Engineering Grants 47.041 BES-0096303 27,447              
      Engineering Grants 47.041 ECS-0210216 27,353              
      Engineering Grants 47.041 CMS-0343731 13,831              

111,901            

      Mathematical and Physical Science 47.049 AST-9703036 (1,356)               
      Mathematical and Physical Science 47.049 DMR-9983816 85,496              
      Mathematical and Physical Science 47.049 PHY-0072226 25,929              
      Mathematical and Physical Science 47.049 DMR-0081006 6,416                

(Continued)
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OHIO UNIVERSITY
(A Component Unit of the State of Ohio)

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Federal Agency / Pass-Through Grantor CFDA No. Federal / Pass-Through Expenditures
Grant Number

      Mathematical and Physical Science 47.049 DMR-0094055 85,747$             
      Mathematical and Physical Science 47.049 DMR-0103034 281,509            
      Mathematical and Physical Science 47.049 PHY-0244999 370,905            
      Mathematical and Physical Science 47.049 DMR-0336431 43,157              
      Mathematical and Physical Science 47.049 DMR-0304314 227,367            
      Mathematical and Physical Science 47.049 DMR-0310933 61,927              
      Mathematical and Physical Science 47.049 PHY-0320759 1,116                
      Mathematical and Physical Science 47.049 AST-0407152 2,707                
      Mathematical and Physical Science 47.049 26,690              

1,217,610         

      Geosciences 47.050 ATM-9905738 11,374              
      Geosciences 47.050 EAR-0074647 37,246              
      Geosciences 47.050 OCE-0117132 72,515              
      Geosciences 47.050 EAR-0125479 51,197              
      Geosciences 47.050 EAR-0207432 22,658              
      Geosciences 47.050 EAR-0210213 1,652                
      Geosciences 47.050 EAR-0228876 49,761              
      Geosciences 47.050 EAR-0308105 11,391              
      Geosciences 47.050 EAR-0308931 25,137              
      Geosciences 47.050 EAR-0350396 9,758                

292,689            

      Computer and Information Science and Engineerin 47.070 ANI-9981927 51,666              
      Computer and Information Science and Engineerin 47.070 ANI-0086642 137,519            
      Computer and Information Science and Engineerin 47.070 ANI-0113307 61,392              
      Computer and Information Science and Engineerin 47.070 EIA-0120056 180,321            

430,898            

      Biological Sciences 47.074 MCB-9733210 55,140              
      Biological Sciences 47.074 MCB-9874744 110,297            
      Biological Sciences 47.074 DEB-9973958 2,700                
      Biological Sciences 47.074 IBN-9904633 67,729              
      Biological Sciences 47.074 IBN-9983561 79,761              
      Biological Sciences 47.074 IBN-0078055 106,472            
      Biological Sciences 47.074 IBN-0080158 52,948              
      Biological Sciences 47.074 IBN-0090250 77,421              
      Biological Sciences 47.074 DBI-0115848 2,840                
      Biological Sciences 47.074 IBN-0110413 104,951            
      Biological Sciences 47.074 IBN-0131077 102,366            
      Biological Sciences 47.074 IBN-0131523 58,252              
      Biological Sciences 47.074 DEB-0211054 51,655              
      Biological Sciences 47.074 DEB-0235676 33,559              
      Biological Sciences 47.074 DEB-0308806 11,269              
      Biological Sciences 47.074 IBN-0309025 3,938                
      Biological Sciences 47.074 IBN-0316687 118,085            
      Biological Sciences 47.074 MCB-0333095 5,500                
      Biological Sciences 47.074 IBN-0343744 35,021              
      Biological Sciences 47.074 IBN-0345500 9,590                
      Biological Sciences 47.074 IBN-0407735 200                   

1,089,694         

      Education and Human Resource 47.076 DUE-0126739 (1,444)               
      Education and Human Resource 47.076 EEC-0227907 106,640            
      Education and Human Resource 47.076 REC 0335593 23,858              
      Education and Human Resource 47.076 DGE-0337438 39,388              
      Education and Human Resource 47.076 DUE-0350395 34,738              

203,180            

      Polar Programs 47.078 OPP-0135989 16,617              

           Subtotal Direct Program 3,362,589         

(Continued)
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
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    Pass-Through Programs From
      American Association for the Advancement of Scienc 47.XXX N/A 799$                  
      American Association for the Advancement of Scienc 47.XXX N/A 4,534                

5,333                

      Applied Sciences Inc 47.041 DMI 0110456 33,078              
      Institute of Ecosystem Studies 47.074 2775-200207 336                   
      Lehigh University 47.049 539023-8000 44,770              
      National Research Counci 47.075 N/A 2,873                
      University of Connecticu 47.XXX 2465 3,346                
      University of Illinois  Urbana 47.049 DMR-0205858 92,324              
      University of Tennessee 47.041 BES-0090009 19,238              

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 201,298            

  TOTAL NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION 3,563,887         

  UNITED STATES AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
    Pass-Through Programs From
      Association Liaison Offic 98.XXX HNE-A-00-97-00059-00 41,426              

  TOTAL UNITED STATES AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 41,426              

  UNITED STATES INSTITUTE OF PEACE
    Direct Programs
      Solicited Grant Program - Beyond Violence Rationale 91.002 13251 2,841                

  TOTAL UNITED STATES INSTITUTE OF PEACE 2,841                

TOTAL RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CLUSTER 21,196,688       

OTHER PROGRAMS:
  APPALACHIAN REGIONAL COMMISSION
    Direct Programs
      Reinventing Community 23.XXX OH-14463-I-2003-302 58,123              
      Whisman Scholar 23.XXX CO-12600E 38,676              

96,799              

      Appalachian Regional Development - Technology Demonstratio 23.001 CO-14309-02 43,012              
      Appalachian Regional Development - Launching Appalachia Rea 23.001 OH-14444-03 42,165              

85,177              

           Subtotal Direct Program 181,976            

  TOTAL APPALACHIAN REGIONAL COMMISSION 181,976            

  CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE
    Pass-Through Programs From
      Ohio Campus Compac 94.005 N/A 1,771                

      Governors Community Service Counc 94.006 03AFH-K728-04-A120 159,736            
      Governors Community Service Counc 94.006 00ASF-J021-03-A017 40,730              
      Governors Community Service Counc 94.006 03AFH-K728-04-A017 296,192            

496,658            

      Jumpstart Nationa 94.006 03ACH-K729-04-A147#40 21,345              

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 519,774            

  TOTAL CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE 519,774            

  DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
    Direct Programs
      Rural Business Enterprise Grant 10.769 Innovation Center 198,375            
      Distance Learning and Telemedicine Loans and Gran 10.855 OHIO 704-A16 479,691            

           Subtotal Direct Program 678,066            

(Continued)
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    Pass-Through Programs From
      Ohio Department of Education 10.559 N/A 32,956$             
      Ohio State University Research Foundatio 10.XXX CA 370304 39                     

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 32,995              

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 711,061            

  DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
    Direct Programs
      Economic Development Administration
      Grants for Public Works and Economic Development Facilitie 11.300 06-01-04525 32,638              
      Grants for Public Works and Economic Development Facilitie 11.300 05-79-03506 48,066              

80,704              

      Public Telecommunications Facilities Planning and Constructio 11.550 39-02-N03017 814,589            

           Subtotal Direct Program 895,293            

    Pass-Through Programs From
      Bowling Green State University 11.303 06-66-04858/06-66-04616/06-66-0474 14,700              

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 14,700              

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 909,993            

  DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE
    Pass-Through Programs From
      Ohio Department of Developmen 12.002 MBDD 03-013/04-017 13,115              

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE 13,115              

  DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
    Direct Programs
      Nat'l Res Ctr & Fellowships Prog for Language, Area & Internat'l Studi 84.015A P015A030005 226,530            
      Nat'l Res Ctr & Fellowships Prog for Language, Area & Internat'l Studi 84.015A P015A000161 54,998              
      Nat'l Res Ctr & Fellowships Prog for Language, Area & Internat'l Studi 84.015B P015B030005 166,884            

448,412            

      International Research and Studie 84.017A P017A000011 56,163              

      Overseas Faculty Research Abroa 84.019A P019A020007 6,284                

      TRIO Student Support Services 84.042A P042A010213 306,262            

      TRIO Upward Bound 84.047A P047A990189 206,040            
      TRIO Upward Bound 84.047A P047A030183 153,238            

359,278            

      Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Educatio 84.116J P116J990004 31,080              
      
      TRIO_McNair Post-Baccalaureate Achievemen 84.217A P217A030004 101,132            
      
      Special Education_Technology and Media Services for Individuals with Disabiliti 84.327A H327A990023 24,253              

      Child Care Access Means Parents in Schoo 84.335A P335A010099-03 15,708              
      
      Preparing Tomorrow's Teachers to Use Technolog 84.342A P342A000235 95,988              

           Subtotal Direct Program 1,444,560         

    Pass-Through Programs From
      ATHENS CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 84.287C 043521-T151-03 466,405            
      CHILLICOTHE BICENTENNIAL COMMISSION INC 84.215K U215K032283 45,407              
      CLEVELAND STATE UNIVERSITY 84.357A S357A020036 75,789              
      COLUMBUS STATE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 84.243 VETP 2002-01-FB/VETP 2003-01-FB 106,273            

(Continued)
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      COMMUNITY ACTION COMMISSION OF BELMONT COUNTY 84.314 N/A 1,575$               
      CORPORATION FOR PUBLIC BROADCASTING 84.XXX 7382 36,816              
      FEDERAL HOCKING LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 84.287C 045914-T1S1-03 402,116            
      INSTITUTE OF SCHOOLS OF THE FUTURE 84.XXX N/A 1,073                
      MIAMI UNIVERSITY 84.XXX 400180-160222-03413C-1/03413C- 25,321              

      OHIO BOARD OF REGENTS 84.XXX 02-34 72,419              
      OHIO BOARD OF REGENTS 84.XXX 02-35 40,013              
      OHIO BOARD OF REGENTS 84.334A P334A990378-02 390,544            
      OHIO BOARD OF REGENTS 84.116 N/A 12,406              

515,382            

      OHIO DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 84.XXX 063024-ST-S1-02 43                     
      OHIO DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 84.XXX N/A (50)                    
      OHIO DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 84.002 063024-AB-SL-2002/2003/2004 425,772            
      OHIO DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 84.323 063024-ST-S1-01 & 03 15,114              

440,879            

      PUBLIC BROADCASTING SERVICE 84.295A R295A000002 27,720              
      WARREN LOCAL SCHOOLS 84.XXX N/A 7,001                
      WARREN WILSON COLLEGE 84.116 N/A (787)                  

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 2,150,970         

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 3,595,530         

  DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
    Direct Programs
      Centers of Excellence 93.157 6 D34HP04027 312,178            
      Allied Health Special Project 93.191 1 D37 HP 00807-03 0 63,671              
      Health Careers Opportunity Program 93.822 5 D18 HP 02889 445,735            
      Rural Health Outreach and Rural Network Development Progra 93.912 1 D1A RH 00109-01 0 297,620            

      Quentin N. Burdick Programs for Rural Interdisciplinary Traini 93.192 5 D36 HP 00009 33,241              

      Medical Library Assistanc 93.879 1 G08 LM008133 26,933              

           Subtotal Direct Program 1,179,378         

    Pass-Through Programs From
      Athens County Dept of JFS 93.558 N/A (17,264)             
      Belmont Department of JFS 93.558 N/A 39                     
      Case Western Reserve University 93.969 5 D31 HP-70113 35,205              
      Columbiana Co Department of JFS 93.XXX N/A 10,475              

      Corp for Ohio Appalachian Developmen 93.569 N/A 2,611                
      Corp for Ohio Appalachian Developmen 93.569 N/A 4,999                
      Corp for Ohio Appalachian Developmen 93.XXX N/A 25,632              

33,242              

      Gallia Co Health Departmen 93.XXX N/A 3,452                
      Gianfagna Inc 93.XXX N/A 1,036                

      Lawrence Co Department of JFS 93.XXX N/A 67,690              
      Lawrence Co Department of JFS 93.XXX N/A 136,707            

204,397            

      Medical College of Ohio 93.107 5 U77 HP 03029-10-00 96,872              

      National Youth Sports Program 93.570 NYSPF 03-306 48,991              
      National Youth Sports Program 93.570 NYSPF 04-1122 16,484              
      National Youth Sports Program 93.570 NYSPF 03-308 51,181              

116,656            

(Continued)
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      Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addictio 93.959 05-00405-00-CPREV-P-02-9945 (9,324)$              
      Ohio Department of Developmen 93.XXX GOAR 04-012 40,553              

      Ohio Department of Health 93.994 K584 77,510              
      Ohio Department of Health 93.XXX N/A 15,766              

93,276              

      Ohio Department of Human Service 93.XXX C-02-04-0514 64,102              
      Ohio Department of Jobs and Family Service 93.XXX GV-04-15-various 43,982              

      Ohio State University Research Foundatio 93.110 5 T73 MC00049 22,607              
      Ohio State University Research Foundatio 93.181 5 D41HP20002-03 20,683              
      Ohio State University Research Foundatio 93.966 T01HP01416-01-00 35,383              

78,673              

      Southern Consortium for Children 93.XXX 1 H2ATH00985-01-00 189,161            
      West Virginia Community Action Partnershi 93.XXX N/A 4,756                

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 989,289            

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 2,168,667         

  DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
    Pass-Through Programs From
      Ohio Emergency Management Agency - FEMA 83.544 FEMA-1453-DR-000-UIZ, UD517, UIZ6Y 44,620              
      Ohio Emergency Management Agency - FEMA 83.544 FEMA-1453-DR-000ULQHB 8,762                

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 53,382              

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 53,382              

  DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
    Pass-Through Programs From
      Huntington Ironton Empowerment Zon 14.244 N/A 135,315            

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 135,315            

  DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
    Pass-Through Programs From
      Vinton Co Juvenile Drug Cour 16.XXX N/A 2,442                

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 2,442                

  DEPARTMENT OF STATE
    Direct Programs
      Joint Student Consulting 19.XXX S-ECAPE-03-GR-044 (DD) 44,032              
      CELTT 19.XXX S-ECAPE-03-GR-155(JL) 191                   
      Inter-religious Dialogue 19.XXX S-ECAPE-03-GR-188(MA) 216,098            

260,321            

      Professional Exchanges Annual Open Gran 19.415 S-ESCAPE-02-GR-100(MA) 50,718              

      Educational Exchange Fulbright American Studies Institute 19.418 S-ECAAE-03-GR-091(JY) 136,499            

           Subtotal Direct Program 447,538            

    Pass-Through Programs From
      Institute for International Education 19.402 S-ECAAE-04-CA-019(PS) 125,815            

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 125,815            

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF STATE 573,353            

  DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
    Direct Programs
      Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation A 15.922 39-02-GP-310 29,093              

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 29,093              

(Continued)
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  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
    Direct Programs
      Federal Aviation Administration
        Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-39-0006-0701 1,846$               
        Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-39-0006-0802 143,372            
        Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-39-0006-0904 5,587                

150,805            

      Federal Highway Administratio
        Highway Planning and Constructio 20.205 AC SPR-2(37) 13,625              

           Subtotal Direct Program 164,430            

    Pass-Through Programs From
      City of Athens 20.509 RPT-4005-023 17,225              
      Ohio Department of Transportation 20.205 AC SPR-2(37) 54,376              

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 71,601              

  TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 236,031            

  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
    Pass-Through Programs From
      Midwest Biodiversity Institute 66.606 N/A 110,583            

      Ohio Department of Natural Resource 66.460 N/A 30,600              
      Ohio Department of Natural Resource 66.460 N/A 3,064                

33,664              

      Ohio Environmental Protection Agenc 66.460 02(h)EPA-04 72,834              

      Rural Action Inc 66.XXX N/A 949                   
      Rural Action Inc 66.XXX N/A 3,294                
      Rural Action Inc 66.460 N/A 9,093                

13,336              

      Vinton Co Soil and Water Distric 66.460 N/A 4,817                
      Washington Co Soil and Water Conservation Distri 66.419 N/A 4,200                

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 239,434            

  TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 239,434            

  NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE ARTS / HUMANITIES
    Direct Programs
      National Endowment for the Art
        Promotion of the Arts Grants to Organizations and Individua 45.024 02-7700-3005 17,807              
        Promotion of the Arts Grants to Organizations and Individua 45.024 03-3400-5092 4,748                
        Promotion of the Arts Grants to Organizations and Individua 45.024 04-3400-5054 10,000              

32,555              

      National Endowment for Humanitie
        Promotion of the Humanities Challenge Grant 45.130 CI-20004-02 74,459              

           Subtotal Direct Program 107,014            

    Pass-Through Programs From
      National College Choreography Initiativ 45.XXX N/A 7,500                
      Ohio Arts Counci 45.026 FY2002-2017 1,776                
      Ohio Humanities Counci 45.129 OHC-03-054 6,307                

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 15,583              

  TOTAL NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE ARTS / HUMANITIES 122,597            

(Continued)
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  NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION
    Direct Programs
      Mathematical and Physical Science 47.049 DMR-0336379 2,214$               

           Subtotal Direct Program 2,214                

    Pass-Through Programs From
      Kentucky Science and Technolog 47.076 ESR0086188 86,970              
      University of Tennessee 47.076 ESI-0119679 469,749            

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 556,719            

  TOTAL NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION 558,933            

  SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION
    Pass-Through Programs From
      Adena Ventures 59.051 N/A 382                   
      Adena Ventures 59.051 N/A 192,906            

193,288            

      Kent State University 59.037 ECDD 01-100 14,562              
      Ohio Department of Developmen 59.037 ECDD 04-101 166,159            

           Subtotal Pass-Through Program 374,009            

  TOTAL SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 374,009            

  SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION
    Pass-Through Programs From
      Ohio Healthcare Association 96.001 N/A 1,711                

  TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION 1,711                

  UNITED STATES AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
    Pass-Through Programs From
      Association Liaison Offic 98.XXX HNE-A-00-97-00059-00 51,357              

  TOTAL UNITED STATES AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 51,357              

  UNITED STATES INFORMATION AGENCY
    Direct Programs
      Schools in Democratic Societie 19.406 IA-ASLJ-G9190295 5,428                

  TOTAL UNITED STATES INFORMATION AGENCY 5,428                

  UNITED STATES PEACE CORPS
    Direct Programs
      Peace Corps Strategy Agreemen 08.XXX P.O. No. 03-161-2031-00 13,021              

  TOTAL UNITED STATES PEACE CORPS 13,021              

TOTAL OTHER PROGRAMS 10,496,222       

GRAND TOTAL - FEDERAL AWARDS 153,689,931$    

(Concluded)
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OHIO UNIVERSITY 
(A Component Unit of the State of Ohio) 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation—The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the 
“Schedule”) is presented using the cash basis of accounting in which expenditures are recognized when 
paid. 

Subrecipient—Of the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule, the Ohio University (the 
“University”) provided federal awards to subrecipients as follows: 

CFDA No. Program Title Expended

10.200 Grants for Agricultural Research, Special Research Grants 7,345$       
11.300 Grants for Public Works and Economic Development Facilities 9,307          
15.808 U.S. Geological Survey Research and Data Collection 118,430      
20.205 Highway Planning and Construction 49,517        
47.049 Mathematical and Physical Sciences 50,924        
47.050 Geosciences 5,000          
47.070 Computer and Information Science and Engineering 66,416        
47.074 Biological Sciences 42,989        
59.037 Small Business Development Center 72,427        
81.089 Fossil Energy Research and Development 89,091        
93.173 Research Related to Deafness and Communication Disorders 174,003      
93.273 Alcohol Research Programs 40,134        
93.279 Drug Abuse Research Programs 252,230      
93.837 Heart and Vascular Diseases Research 144,978      
93.853 Extramural Research Programs in the Neurosciences and Neurological Disorders 91,008        
12.800 Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program 101,513      
12.XXX U S Army Medical Research Acquisition- Dietary Energy Requirements 3,675          
20.XXX FAA--Local Area Augmentation System 117,536      
20.XXX FAA--DTFA01-01-C-00071 41,281        
43.XXX Inteqrated Guidance and Control 93,006        
81.XXX Evaluation of Fine Particulate Matter 284,436      
81.XXX Planar Solid Oxide Fuel Cells 219,223      
84.116J Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Education 31,080        

2,105,549$  

2. NONCASH FEDERAL AWARDS 

During the year ended June 30, 2004, the University did not receive any nonmonetary assistance. 
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3. FEDERAL LOAN PROGRAMS ADMINISTERED 

The University had the following loan balances outstanding at June 30, 2004: 

Year Ended
June 30, 2004

Perkins Loan Program 7,960,234$  
Disadvantaged Sutdents Loan 509,704       
Health Professional Student Loans (HPSL) 2,613,400    

Total 11,083,338$  

* * * * * *



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Trustees 
Ohio University 
Athens, Ohio 

We have audited the financial statements of Ohio University (the “University”), as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2004, and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2004. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States. 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the University’s internal control over financial reporting in 
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements 
and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal 
control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial 
reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design 
or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk 
that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial 
statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal 
course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial 
reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters 
involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to the management of the University 
in a separate letter dated October 22, 2004.  

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of 
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management of the 
University, federal awarding agencies, state funding agencies, pass-through entities and the Auditor of the State 
of Ohio and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
 
October 22, 2004 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

Board of Trustees 
Ohio University 
Athens, Ohio 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of Ohio University (the “University”) with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (“OMB”) Circular A-133 
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2004. The University’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results 
section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is 
the responsibility of the University’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
University’s compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
University’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our 
audit does not provide a legal determination on the University’s compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the University complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above 
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2004.  

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal 
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the University’s internal control over 
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in 
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www.deloitte.com 

Member of 
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



- 20 - 

order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and 
to test and report on the internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the 
internal control that might be material weakness. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which 
the design or operation of one ore more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively 
low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited 
may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its 
operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

We have audited the financial statements of the University as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, 
and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2004. Our audit was performed for the purpose of 
forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for the purpose of additional analysis as required by OMB 
Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the financial statements. This schedule is the responsibility of 
the management of the University. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in our audit of the financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, 
when considered in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees and management of the 
University, federal awarding agencies, state funding agencies, pass-through entities, and the Auditor of 
State of Ohio and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

 
 

October 22, 2004 
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OHIO UNIVERSITY 
(A Component Unit of the State of Ohio) 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

PART I—SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS 

1. The independent auditors’ report on the financial statements expressed an unqualified opinion. 

2. Our audit of the financial statements did not disclose a reportable condition in internal controls. 

3. No instances of noncompliance considered material to the financial statements were disclosed by the 
audit. 

4. No reportable conditions in internal control over compliance with requirements applicable to major 
federal award programs were identified.  

5. The independent auditors’ report on compliance with requirements applicable to major federal award 
programs expressed an unqualified opinion. 

6. The audit disclosed no findings which are required to be reported by OMB Circular A-133. 

7. The major programs were the Student Financial Aid Cluster, and the Research and Development Cluster 
which are included in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

8. A threshold of $1,551,182 was used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as those terms 
are defined in OMB Circular A-133. 

9. The Auditee did qualify as a low risk auditee as that term is defined in OMB Circular A-133. 

PART II—FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS SECTION  

No matters are reportable. 

PART III—FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST SECTION 

No matters are reportable. 

PART IV—SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

No matters are reportable. 



 

Ohio University 
Independent Accountants’ Report on the 
Application of Agreed-Upon Procedures to the 
University’s Accounting Records and System of 
Internal Accounting Control as they Relate to the 
University’s Intercollegiate Athletics Programs for 
the Year Ended June 30, 2004 

 

 



This Page is Intentionally Left Blank.



 

 

 

 

Deloitte & Touche LLP
155 East Broad Street 
18th Floor 
Columbus, OH 43215-3611 
USA 

Tel:   614-221-1000 
Fax:  614-229-4647 
www.deloitte.com 

Member of 
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Dr. Roderick J. McDavis 
President 
Ohio University 
Athens, Ohio 

We have audited the financial statements of The Ohio University and Subsidiaries (the “University”) as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2004, and have issued our unqualified report thereon dated October 22, 
2004. We have also applied certain procedures requested by you, as discussed below, to the University’s 
accounting records and system of internal accounting control as they relate to the University’s 
Intercollegiate Athletics Programs for the year ended June 30, 2004, solely to assist the University in 
complying with NCAA Bylaw 6.2.3.1 for the year ended June 30, 2004. The University’s management is 
responsible for the University’s compliance with those requirements. This engagement to apply agreed-
upon procedures was performed in accordance with attestation standards established by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility 
of the specified users of this report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of 
the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any 
other purpose. Our procedures and findings are as follows: 

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures—Agreed-Upon Substantive Procedures 

a. We obtained the accompanying Statement of Revenues and Expenditures (the “Statement”) for the 
year ended June 30, 2004, as prepared by management and shown in the Exhibit to this report. We 
noted the arithmetic accuracy of the amounts in the Statement and agreed the amounts in the 
Statement to the University’s general ledger. We made analytical comparisons to both the budgeted 
amounts and the 2003 amounts. The Intercollegiate Athletics Department provided explanations for 
the fluctuations.  

b. Through discussions with the University’s Assistant Director of Athletics, we obtained an 
understanding of the ticket revenue cycle, and we agreed football, men’s basketball and women’s 
basketball ticket sales, as recorded in the Statement to the “Event Audit and Recap for Events,” 
reports for the year ended June 30, 2004. 

c. We agreed concession revenues recorded in the Statement to the “Concession Profit and Loss 
Statement” for the year ended June 30, 2004. Concession revenues per the Statement were agreed to 
the University’s general ledger. We recalculated concession revenues within $537 or 2%, in favor of 
the University.. 
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d. We obtained signed contracts and other supporting documentation for revenues and expenditures 
resulting from guarantee agreements and agreed amounts to appropriate supporting detail on a test 
basis, noting no exceptions. 

e. We agreed gift revenues recorded in the Department of Athletics’ accounts for the year ended 
June 30, 2004, to the amounts recognized by the Ohio University Foundation for the same period, 
noting no differences. 

f. We compared investment income earned on endowed funds to the balances of the endowed fund 
accounts. We found income earned on endowed funds to be reasonable based on balances in the 
endowed funds.  

g. We obtained the Ohio University Foundation—Intercollegiate Athletics June 30, 2004 report from  
the Ohio University Foundation and noted that no individual contributions received during the year 
ended June 30, 2004 were in excess of 10% of total contributions for the year. 

Because the above procedures “a” through “g” do not constitute an audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we do not express an opinion on any of the 
accounts or items referred to above. Had we performed additional procedures or had we performed an 
audit of the financial statements of the Intercollegiate Athletics Department of the Ohio University in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, matters might 
have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. This report relates only to the accounts 
and items specified above and do not extend to the financial statements of the Ohio University or its 
Intercollegiate Athletics Department taken as a whole. 

Outside Organizations—Agreed-Upon Substantive Procedures 

h. We obtained from the management of the Ohio University the following list of outside organizations 
and their related financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2004, as they relate to the 
Intercollegiate Athletics Programs of the University. We agreed total revenues and expenditures, or 
total cash receipts and cash disbursements, of all booster organizations for the year ended June 3, 
2004 with amounts obtained from the official responsible for each respective booster organization.  

The Ohio
University Green and 
Foundation White Club Total

Beginning cash balance ** 698,552$   63,286$  761,838$   
Add:  cash receipts 541,593    88,064   629,657     
Other 33,762      (75,271) (41,509)      

1,273,907 76,079   1,349,986   
Less:  contributions to or on behalf of program (518,781)   (24,157) (542,938)     

Ending cash balance 755,126$    51,922$   807,048$     

**These amounts are not recorded in the University’s general ledger. 

i. We agreed total revenues and expenditures and/or total cash receipts and cash disbursements of all 
service organizations for the year ended June 30, 2004 with amounts obtained directly from each 
respective service organization.  
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Because the above procedures “h” through “i” do not constitute an audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we do not express an opinion on any of the 
accounts or items referred to above. Had we performed additional procedures or had we performed an 
audit of the financial statements of the Intercollegiate Athletics Department of the Ohio University in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, matters might 
have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. This report relates only to the accounts 
and items specified above and do not extend to the financial statements of the Ohio University or its 
Intercollegiate Athletics Department taken as a whole. 

Internal Accounting Control Related to Intercollegiate Athletics—Agreed-Upon Procedures 

The management of the Ohio University is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of 
internal accounting control. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are 
required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of control procedures. The objectives of a 
system of internal accounting control are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that 
transactions are executed in accordance with management’s authorization and recorded properly to permit 
the preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Because of inherent limitations in any system of internal accounting control, errors or irregularities may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the system to future periods is subject to 
the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the procedures may deteriorate. Our procedures and findings are as follows: 

j. We obtained and read the organization chart for the Department of Athletics. We read the available 
documentation of the accounting systems and procedures. We also made certain inquiries of 
management regarding departmental organization, control consciousness, competency of personnel, 
adequate safeguarding and control of records and assets. 

k. We obtained an understanding of the Ticket Sales and Team Travel expenditure cycles by testing a 
sample of transactions. No exceptions were noted.  

Agreed-upon procedures “j” and “k” applied to certain aspects of the University’s system of internal 
accounting control were more limited than would be necessary to express an opinion on the system of 
internal accounting control taken as a whole. Because the scope of our work was limited to applying 
agreed-upon procedures “j” and “k” to certain aspects of the system of internal accounting control, we are 
unable to express and do not express an opinion on whether the system of internal accounting control of 
the Ohio University in effect for the year ended June 30, 2004, taken as a whole, was sufficient to meet 
the objectives stated above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the President and management of Ohio 
University and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.  

 
 

Columbus, Ohio 
November 2, 2004 
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OHIO UNIVERSITY Exhibit
DEPARTMENT OF ATHLETICS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 (UNAUDITED)

Football
Men’s 

Basketball
Women’s 
Basketball Other Sports

Non Program 
Specific

TOTAL
FY 2004

REVENUES:
  Ticket sales (gate receipts) 286,646$     243,330$  5,406$      5,996$         -     $             541,378$      
  Guarantees 500,000       40,000                     1,500                              541,500        
  NCAA  & tourney                                                                   932,663        932,663        
  Misc (esp lrg royalties) 1,285                          132           49,859         230,871        282,147        
  Program sales/adv 8,472           1,973        867                             205,626        216,938        
  Concessions                                                                   23,404          23,404          
  Commissions  (Ica Zides Co)                                                                   8,410            8,410            
  Parking 26,605         24,382                                       41,792          92,779          
  Gifts— Restricted 23,148         16,803      2,323        56,262         16,563          115,099        
  Support from E&G Fund                                                                   9,623,094     9,623,094     

TOTAL REVENUE 846,156       326,488    8,728        113,617       11,082,423   12,377,412   

EXPENDITURES:
  Coaching salaries 868,916       403,908    317,172    1,157,561                       2,747,557     
  Other salaries                                                                   1,913,498     1,913,498     
  Films 13                                                                2,582            2,595            
  Travel—Team 193,358       81,105      62,398      374,019       36,133          747,013        
  Travel—Recruiting 85,648         37,653      41,373      77,252         58                 241,984        
  Financial aid 1,617,744    301,511    252,591    2,131,738    329,500        4,633,084     
  Maint & general admin 210,502       70,789      48,609      223,458       1,527,860     2,081,218     
  Equipment 33,753         1,403        6,894        7,862           84,536          134,448        
  Publicity                                                 75                44,301          44,376          
  Insurance                   500                          500              134,999        135,999        
  Telephone 11,966         6,723        7,681        10,304         68,445          105,119        
  Entertainment 1,201           90                       7,368         7,478            16,137         

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,023,101    903,682  736,718  3,990,137  4,149,390     12,803,028  

NONMANDATORY TRANSFERS
  DEBT SERVICE (293,293)       (293,293)      
  PLANT FUNDS TRANSFER                                                          (146,012)       (146,012)      

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUES 
  OVER EXPENDITURES (2,176,945)$ (577,194)$ (727,990)$ (3,876,520)$ 6,493,728$   (864,921)$     

Note:  This schedule was prepared by a representative of the Department of Athletics.
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